
 

 

 
 

MEETING 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

DATE AND TIME 
 

THURSDAY 29TH JANUARY 2015 
 

AT 7.00 PM 

VENUE 
 

HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, LONDON NW4 4BQ 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE (Quorum 3) 
 

Chairman: Councillor Brian Salinger (Chairman), 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Sury Khatri BSc (Hons) MSc (Lond) (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillors 
 

Geof Cooke 
Kathy Levine 
 

Arjun Mittra 
Gabriel Rozenberg 

Peter Zinkin 

 
Substitute Members 
 

Melvin Cohen 
Eva Greenspan 
 
 

Anne Hutton 
John Marshall 
 

Alan Schneiderman 
Ammar Naqvi 
 

Independent Members 
 
Richard Harbord  Vacancy 
 
 
You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached. 

 

Andrew Charlwood – Head of Governance (Acting) 

 
Governance Services contact: Andrew Charlwood  020 8359 2014  

andrew.charlwood@barnet.gov.uk 
 

Media Relations contact: Sue Cocker 020 8359 7039 
 

ASSURANCE GROUP 
 



 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

Item No Title of Report Pages 

1.   Minutes of last meeting  
 

1 - 4 

2.   Absence of Members (If any)  
 

 

3.   Declaration of Members' Disclosable Pecuniary interests and Non 
Pecuniary interests (If any)  
 

 

4.   Report of the Monitoring Officer (If any)  
 

 

5.   Public Question and Comments (If any)  
 

 

6.   Members' Items (If any)  
 

 

7.   Internal Audit Exception Recommendations Report and Progress 
Report up to 31 December 2014  
 

5 - 70 

8.   Corporate Anti-Fraud Team (CAFT) Progress Report Q3 October - 
December 2014  
 

71 - 84 

9.   Annual Audit Letter 2013/2014  
 

85 - 96 

10.   Grants Certification Work Report 2013/2014  
 

97 - 110 

11.   External Audit Progress - Verbal Update  
 

 

12.   Any item(s) the Chairman decides are urgent  
 

 

 
 

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets.  If you wish to let 
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone Andrew 
Charlwood  020 8359 2014  andrew.charlwood@barnet.gov.uk.  People with hearing 
difficulties who have a text phone, may telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942.  All 
of our Committee Rooms also have induction loops. 

 
 
 
 



 
 

 

   

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by Committee 
staff or by uniformed custodians.  It is vital you follow their instructions. 
 
You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts. 
 
Do not stop to collect personal belongings 
 
Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some 
distance away and await further instructions. 
 
Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
Decisions of the Audit Committee 

 
6 November 2014 

 
Members:- 

 
Cllr Brian Salinger (Chairman) 

Cllr Sury Khatri (Vice-Chairman) 
 
 

Councillor Anne Hutton 
(Substituting  for Councillor 
Geof Cooke)  
Councillor Kathy Levine  

Councillor Arjun Mittra 
Councillor Gabriel Rozenberg 
Councillor Peter Zinkin 

 
 

 
  

Independent Members (have no-voting rights) 
 

Richard Harbord 
 
 

The Chairman requested that it be placed on record the Committee’s thanks to Debra Lewis, an 
Independent Member of the Audit Committee who had recently resigned her position, and 
Chidilim Agada, who had provided governance support to the Committee for a number of years 
and was leaving the council.   

 
 

1. MINUTES OF LAST MEETING (Agenda Item 1): 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meetings held on 22 July 2014 be approved as a 
correct record. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 29 July 2014 be approved as a 
correct record, subject to the amendment of minute item 2 to record the voting on the 
item.  
 
 

2. ABSENCE OF MEMBERS (IF ANY) (Agenda Item 2): 
 
An apology for absence had been received from Councillor Geof Cooke who had been 
substituted for by Councillor Anne Hutton. 
 
 

3. DECLARATION OF MEMBERS' DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND 
NON PECUNIARY INTERESTS (IF ANY) (Agenda Item 3): 
 
Members declared the following interests: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Councillor Agenda Item Interest 

Anne Hutton 7 – Quarter 2 Internal 
Audit Progress Report 

Non pecuniary interest as 
Councillor Hutton is an 
Independent Member of the 
Fostering Panel 

AGENDA ITEM 1

1



 

2 

 
4. REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER (IF ANY) (Agenda Item 4): 

 
None. 
 
 

5. PUBLIC QUESTION AND COMMENTS (IF ANY) (Agenda Item 5): 
 
None. 
 
 

6. MEMBERS' ITEMS (IF ANY) (Agenda Item 6): 
 
None. 
 
 

7. QUARTER 2 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT (Agenda Item 7): 
 
The Head of Internal Audit introduced the report. The Committee discussed the report 
and asked questions to the relevant Directors or their representatives on the audits that 
had received limited or no assurance reports.  
 
The Committee requested that officers review the wording in the section of the report on 
Data Quality to improve clarity regarding the assessment of information against the six 
characteristics which collectively constitute the Council’s definition of data quality. 
 
The Committee requested that, in relation to the performance indicators on ‘% of 
recommendations implemented' as set out in Appendix D (Internal Audit Effectiveness 
Indicators), the format is revised to include details of the total number of 
recommendations against the number of recommendations implemented as well as the 
% implemented. 
 
RESOLVED that the Committee noted the progress against internal audit 
recommendations and work completed to date on the Internal Audit Annual Plan 2014-15 
and high priority recommendations. 
 
 

8. CORPORATE ANTI-FRAUD TEAM (CAFT) QUARTER 2 PROGRESS REPORT 
(Agenda Item 8): 
 
The Assurance Assistant Director introduced the report. 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

2



 

3 

 
9. COUNTER FRAUD FRAMEWORK REVIEW 2014 (Agenda Item 9): 

 
The Assurance Assistant Director presented the report. 
 
The Committee requested that in future amendments to the policies which comprise the 
Counter Fraud Framework be included in the agenda papers for the meeting and include 
tracked changes.  
 
RESOLVED that the updates to the Counter Fraud Framework 2014 are approved. 
 
 

10. EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS - VERBAL UPDATE (Agenda Item 10): 
 
Paul Hughes of Grant Thornton LLP (External Auditors) gave a short verbal update.  He 
advised the Committee that there were three objections to the Statement of Accounts for 
2013/14 which were expected to be resolved by the next meeting.  The Committee noted 
that the development of the External Audit Plan for 2015/16 was in development. 
 
RESOLVED that the update be noted.  
 
 

11. ANY ITEM(S) THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT (Agenda Item 11): 
 
With the consent of the Chairman, Councillor Khatri proposed that the Performance & 
Contract Management Committee be requested to review of the 70 KPI's associated with 
the Re Contract following on the Data Quality issue highlighted in the Internal Audit Q2 
report. 
 
RESOLVED that the Committee approve the referral to the Performance & Contract 
Management Committee as detailed above.  
 
 
 
 

The meeting finished at 9.15 pm 
 
 

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Summary 
 
Members are asked to note the progress against internal audit recommendations and work 
completed to date on the Internal Audit Annual Plan 2014-15 and high priority 
recommendations. 
 
The Internal Audit Service has continued delivery of work in accordance with its plan 
reported to the Audit Committee in April 2014.  Over the current period since the 
Committee last met in November 2014 the service has issued 33 reports with the following 
assurance ratings: 
 
 
 

 

Audit Committee 
 

29
th
 January 2015 

  

Title  

Internal Audit Exception 
Recommendations Report and 
Progress Report up to 31st December 
2014 

Report of Caroline Glitre – Head of Internal Audit 

Wards N/A 

Status Public 

Enclosures                         

Appendix A: Internal Audit progress report (up to 31st 
December 2014) 

Appendix B: Work completed in Q3 to 31st December 2014 

Appendix C: Work in progress at 31st December 2014 

Appendix D: Internal Audit Effectiveness Indicators 

Appendix E: Internal Audit Recommendations due quarter 3 
(end of December) 

Officer Contact Details  
Caroline Glitre, Head of Internal Audit 
caroline.glitre@barnet.gov.uk 
020 8359 3721 

AGENDA ITEM 7

5



 

Substantial 1 

Satisfactory 18 

Limited 5 

No 0 

N/A 9 

Total 33 

 
Detail has been presented in Appendix A on the 5 reports issued as ‘Limited’ assurance: 
 

1 Income and Debt Management 

2 Accounts Payable 

3 General Ledger 

4 Housing Benefit 

5 NNDR 

 
Across the Key Financial Systems audits, we found that reconciliations, a key control, had 
not been operating as expected. We have therefore undertaken some early follow-up work 
in January 2015 to provide the Audit Committee with assurance that the issues identified 
are being addressed and that progress has been made in implementing the 
recommendations. A summary of progress to date is as follows: 
 

Treasury Management Implemented 

Payroll Partly Implemented 

Income & Debt Management Partly Implemented 

Accounts Payable Partly Implemented 

General Ledger control accounts Partly Implemented 

Council Tax / National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) Partly Implemented 

 

We will follow-up these recommendations again as part of our normal quarterly process i.e. 
at the end of Quarter 4. 
  
Full copies of the Limited Assurance audit reports are available on the Barnet website here: 
 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13619&path=0 
 

73% of the recommendations that were due to have been implemented by the end of 
December have been fully implemented. A summary of those recommendations which 
were due in Quarter 3 has been included for the Audit Committee to review (Appendix E).  

 

 

 

 

6



Recommendations  
 
That the Committee note the progress against internal audit recommendations and 
work completed to date on the Internal Audit Annual Plan 2014-15 & high priority 
recommendations. 
 

 
 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 
1.1 The Audit Committee’s role in receiving this report is to note the overall 

progress made against the 2014-15 Internal Audit Plan and the high priority 
recommendations made. In addition, the Audit Committee can inquire with 
Directors and Assistants Directors as to their progress against 
recommendations. 

 
 
2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
2.1 The Audit Committee approved the workplan in April and this report notes the 

progress against that plan and progress against high priority 
recommendations. 
 
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

3.1 Not relevant. 
 
 

4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

4.1 The Internal Audit Plan will continue to be delivered as reported to the Audit 
Committee with recommendations implemented in line with the report. 
 
 

5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 

5.1.1 All internal audit and risk management planned activity is aligned with the 
Council’s objectives set out in the Corporate Plan 2013-2016, and thus 
supports the delivery of those objectives by giving an auditor judgement on 
the effectiveness of the management of the risks associated with delivery of 
the service. 
 

5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 
 

5.2.1 When risk, and assurances that those risks are being well managed, is 
analysed alongside finance and performance information it can provide 

7



management with the ability to measure value for money. 
 

5.2.2 The work plan agreed by the Audit Committee is being achieved from Internal 
Audit’s current budget. 
 

5.3 Legal and Constitutional References 
 

5.3.1 There are no legal issues in the context of this report. 
 

5.3.2 The Council’s Constitution Part 3 Responsibilities for Functions - the Audit 
Committee terms of reference paragraph 2 states that the Committee can 
consider summaries of specific internal audit reports as requested. 

 
5.4 Risk Management 

 
5.4.1 All Internal Audit activity is directed toward giving assurance about risk 

management within the areas examined. By so doing the aim is to help 
maximise the achievement of the Council’s objectives. Internal Audit does this 
by identifying areas for improvement and agreeing actions to address the 
weaknesses.  
 

5.4.2 Internal Audit work contributes to increasing awareness and understanding of 
risk and controls amongst managers and thus leads to improving 
management processes for securing more effective risk management. 
 

5.5 Equalities and Diversity  
 

5.5.1 Effective systems of audit, internal control and corporate governance provide 
assurance on the effective allocation of resources and quality of service 
provision for the benefit of the entire community. Individual audits assess, as 
appropriate, the differential aspects on different groups of individuals to 
ensure compliance with the Council’s duties under the 2010 Equality Act. 
 

5.6 Consultation and Engagement 
 

5.6.1 N/A 
 
 

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
6.1  Audit Committee 11 March 2010 (Decision Item 10) - the Committee accepted 

that there would be progress reports to all future meetings of the Committee 
and, that for all “limited” or “no assurance” audits, there should be a brief 
explanation of the issues identified.   
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/Data/Audit%20Committee/201003111900/Agen
da/Document%201.pdf 

 

6.2 Audit Committee 21 September 2010 (Decision Item 8) – the Committee 
agreed that where an audit had limited assurance that greater detail be 
provided than previously. 

8



http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/Data/Audit%20Committee/201009211900/Agen
da/Document%201.pdf 

 

6.3 Audit Committee 17 February 2011 (Decision Item 7) – the Committee (i) 
agreed that a report would be prepared quarterly regarding those internal 
audit recommendations not implemented (ii) requested that the table of 
priority 1 recommendations should in future indicate what date 
recommendations were made to service areas and the implementation date. 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/Data/Audit%20Committee/201102171900/Agen
da/Document%201.pdf 

 
  

9



 

 
REPORT CLEARANCE CHECKLIST 
(Removed prior to publication and retained by Governance Service) 
 
Report authors should engage with their Governance Champion early in the report 
writing process and record the date below. If the decision/report has been reviewed 
at an internal board please record the date and name of the meeting (e.g. SCB). 
Otherwise enter N/A. All reports must be cleared by the appropriate Director/AD, 
Legal, Finance and Governance as a minimum. Legal, Finance and Governance 
require a minimum of 5 working days to provide report clearance. Clearance 
cannot be guaranteed for reports submitted outside of this time.  
 
AUTHOR TO COMPLETE TABLE BELOW: 

 

Who Clearance Date Name 

Governance Champion   N/A  

Director / AD / Lead 
Commissioner  

20/1/15 Clair Green 

Enabling Board / Delivery Board N/A  

Commissioning and Policy   N/A  

Equalities & Diversity N/A  

HR Business Partner N/A  

Strategic Procurement N/A  

HB Public Law N/A  

Finance 21/1/15 (verbal) John Hooton  

Governance 20/1/15 Andrew Charlwood  

 

10



 

1 

 
Appendix A 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Internal Audit 

 
Progress Report 2014-15 – Quarter 3 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Caroline Glitre, Head of Internal Audit 

 

 

 

 

 

11



 

 

Contents 

1. Introduction ....................................................................................................... 3 
2. Final Reports Issued ......................................................................................... 3 
3. Key Findings from Internal Audit Work with Limited assurance ......................... 4 
4. Assurance reviews for management purposes ............................................... 27 
5. Work in progress and effectiveness review ..................................................... 33 
6. Changes to our plan ........................................................................................ 34 
7. Liaison with Officers and External Audit .......................................................... 35 
8. Risk Management ........................................................................................... 35 

12



 

 

1. Introduction 

 

The Internal Audit Plan was accepted by the Audit Committee on the 29th April 
2014. This report follows the principles previously requested by the Committee, in 
that all audit reports with limited or no assurance will be summarised into key 
messages with some detail.  

2. Final Reports Issued  

 

This report covers the period from 1st October 2014 to 31st December 2014 and 
represents an up to date picture of the work in progress to that date. The Internal 
Audit service has over this period issued 33 reports in accordance with the 2014-
15 Internal Audit Plan. The full list of completed audits during this period is 
included within Appendix B.  
 
In summary, the assurance ratings provided were as follows: 
 

Substantial 1 

Satisfactory 18 

Limited 5 

No 0 

N/A 9 

Total 33 

 
The summary detail of those reports issued as Limited assurance is included 
within section 3. 

13



 

 

3. Key Findings from Internal Audit Work with Limited assurance 

 

3.1 Key Financial Systems 
 

Background 

 
As part of this review we identified the key controls operating within Barnet’s key financial systems and devised an overarching 
programme of testing across the different systems and processes to give assurance on the effectiveness of these key controls.  
 

In the 2014/15 year we have refreshed our approach to this work by bringing a number of systems together under one test 
programme for which we have identified and agreed key controls to be tested. We confirmed and updated our understanding of the 
key controls in place through a number of planning workshops with Customer Support Group (CSG) to ensure our work is up to 
date and relevant.   

 
In April 2014 the SAP system was replaced with three alternative systems: 
 

• Integra for the Council’s general ledger, accounts payable, accounts receivable and fixed assets 

• Core for the Council’s payroll and HR 

• Resource Link for Schools payroll and HR 
 
The majority of the issues identified are believed to be a direct or indirect result of the move from SAP to these alternative systems, 
along with changes in personnel and staff structures as responsibilities were moved from the Council to CSG. These moves 
represented a significant change to the control environment and staff having competing demands on their time due to the 
introduction of the new system; there has been a period of bedding down of the new systems and responsibilities and 
establishment of the new control environment through the early part of this year.  
 
A summary of the five key financial systems which received Limited assurance is below. Across the Key Financial Systems audits, 
we found that reconciliations, a key control, had not been operating as expected. We have therefore undertaken some early follow-
up work in January 2015 to provide the Audit Committee with assurance that the issues identified are being addressed and 

14



 

 

progress has been made. Where appropriate these findings have also been included in the summary below. We will follow-up these 
recommendations again as part of our normal quarterly process i.e. at the end of Quarter 4 to provide assurance that the 
recommendations have been fully implemented by year end. 
 

 
 

15



 

 

 
 

Title Income & Debt Management 

Assurances 

Audit Opinion  

 

No Limited Satisfactory Substantial 

  

 

 

 

  

Date of report: December 2014 
 

Summary of 
Findings 
 
 

Number of key controls tested Number of control design 
improvements identified 

Number of controls where 
exceptions were found 

7 
 
1 
 

3 

 
Design of controls  
Invoices can be raised by members of the individual services across the Council with no limits or 
restrictions on amounts and are not required to be authorised. 
 
Operation of controls  
Reconciliation 
No reconciliation has been performed from April 2014 to October 2014 between the General ledger 
system and its sub ledger for Accounts Receivable. 
 
Credit notes  
8/25 exceptions noted where no supporting information as to why the credit note was raised by the 
department was provided. 

16



 

 

 
Write offs  
4/25 exceptions were noted where the proposed write off documentation did not show the date on which 
the write off was prepared. However, other than this the write off was authorised correctly.  
 

Priority 1 recommendations, management responses and agreed action dates 

1. Invoice request forms    

Detailed Finding Risk Recommendation 

Invoice request forms are not in 
operation and there is currently no 
requirement for invoice requests to be 
reviewed and authorised prior to invoices 
being raised.  

Invoices can be raised by members of 
the individual services with no limits or 
restrictions on amounts or checks to 
ensure these are accurate before they 
are raised. 

Invoices could be raised incorrectly 
through fraud or human error. This could 
result in incorrectly overbilling clients, 
resulting in a degradation of 
relationships and credit notes needing to 
be issued.   

 

Invoices requests should be implemented 

and authorised before being issued. Due 

to the large amount of invoices issued, a 

scheme of delegation of authority could 

be set up so that invoices could be 

authorised on a hierarchal basis 

depending on value.   

Management Response Responsible Officer Deadline 

The financial process in place within Integra is identical to the process in place 
within SAP, where by a ‘Sales Order’ request is placed on the system and then 
through an automated process this is turned into an invoice and sent to the 
customer. It should be noted that credit notes go through an approval loop and are 
approved by the respective budget manager/holder. 

In line with the recommendation from the Internal Auditor and in line with best 

Assistant Director of 
Finance, CSG 

March 2015 

17



 

 

practice, a system configuration change will be made to Integra to introduce a 
threshold for ‘Sales Orders’ which require approval. This threshold will be decided 
following a review of all debtors and credits notes raised in the period and then 
reviewed periodically and if necessary lowered. 

18



 

 

 

2a. Reconciliations    

Detailed Finding – October 2014 Risk Recommendation 

No reconciliation has been performed 
from April 2014 to October 2014 between 
the General ledger system and its sub 
ledger for Accounts Receivable. This is 
due to the implementation of the 
INTEGRA system which had a go live 
date of April 2014. 

• Discrepancies could occur between 
the sub ledger and the general 
ledger due to misappropriation of 
funds.  

• The information held in the general 

ledger could not be complete and up 

to date.  

Reconciliations should be performed on a 
regular basis and should be authorised by 
a senior member of the finance team on a 
timely basis. Both preparer and authoriser 
should sign and date the reconciliation 
and archive it appropriately.   

Management Response Responsible Officer Deadline 

This is due to the implementation of the INTEGRA system which had a go live date 
of April 2014. A reconciliation will be performed that will cover the period from April 
2014 to September 2014 in December 2014. 

Assistant Director of 
Finance, CSG 

December 
2014 

2b. Reconciliations follow-up – January 2015 

Detailed finding Audit Assessment January 2015 

At the time of testing on 8/1/2015, no formal evidence could be provided to show 
that the reconciliation for 1st April to 31st October 2014 had been performed or 
authorised. The sign-off of the reconciliation showing the date prepared and 
authorised was consequently performed whilst we were on site on 9/1/2014 for the 
April to October period.  
 
The reconciliation for November was also authorised after the audit had 
commenced and we were unable to see the evidence of the reconciliation being 
performed prior to this date due to staff absence at the time of testing. We have 
been informed by senior management that regular reviews of the reconciliations 

Partly Implemented 
 
Revised Implementation date :  
31 January 2015 

19



 

 

have occurred but evidence could not be seen to support that the reconciliation is 
performed on a timely basis as a business as usual control.   
 
We have seen that the reconciliation has been authorised correctly as prepared and 
signed off by separate and appropriate members of staff. An outstanding balance on 
the reconciliation of £232k has been noted that had not been thoroughly 
investigated or clarified as at the time of testing. As the reconciliation has been 
completed in January 2015 for the period ending 31/10/2014, we would expect that 
this balance would have been understood and resolved at the time of sign off. 

20



 

 

 

Title Accounts Payable 

Assurances 

Audit Opinion  

 

No Limited Satisfactory Substantial 

  

 

 

 

  

Date of report: December 2014 
 

Summary of 
Findings 
 
 

Number of key controls tested Number of control design 
improvements identified 

Number of controls where 
exceptions were found 

5 
 
2 
 

3 

Design of controls  

BACs runs 

No control was seen to be operating where the BACs runs are reviewed and authorised before payments 
are made.  

New Suppliers 

New supplier forms do not record if the new supplier has been validated to an external source.  

Operation of controls  

Reconciliations  

• No reconciliation has been performed from April 2014 to October 2014 between the General ledger 

21



 

 

system and its sub ledger for Accounts Payable. 

New Suppliers: 

• 1/25 exception was noted where a new supplier form was not evidenced for a new supplier as a 
signed invoice was used in its place due to non-compliance with the purchase order process.  

Supplier Amendments: 

• 1/25 exception where evidence was provided that was not deemed valid to lead to the supplier 
amendment. 

 

Priority 1 recommendations, management responses and agreed action dates 

1. BACs request authorisation and reconciliation     

Detailed Finding Risk Recommendation 

No evidence was provided to show that 
the BACs run was reviewed and 
authorised before being issued for 
payment.  

There is currently no auditable evidence 
of sign off from the AP team that shows 
that the BACs to be paid has been 
reviewed and sent off prior to payment.  

The AP team currently email the Capita 
payment team as confirmation of the 
payment, but this is not archived and 
does not state the amounts or details of 
the payments.  

Fraudulent changes to the BACs 
payment details could be made which 
could lead to financial loss to the 
council.  

The migration of the BACs payment 

could be corrupted in transfer from one 

system to the other, resulting in 

payments not being made or being 

made incorrectly. This could lead to the 

council not meeting the payment terms 

or overpaying suppliers. 

The BACs run should be reviewed and 
authorised by the AP team to confirm that 
the payments to be made are accurate 
and valid.  

This should then be reconciled against 

the BACs payment made to ensure that 

no changes have been made in the 

migration of the BACs data from the AP 

system to the BACs system.  Evidence of 

this process should then be archived. 

22



 

 

We have been informed that the 
payments team reconcile the amounts 
per the INTEGRA system to the payment 
run, but no evidence was provided of the 
process or the segregation of duties 
involved. 

Management Response Responsible Officer Deadline 

The BACs run is proposed, reviewed and authorised by one of three members of 
the AP team (Senior Accounts Payable Officer or Head of Exchequer Services) and 
this takes place within Integra. On authorisation the system produces a file which is 
output into an automated process through which the file cannot be changed and 
uploaded to the BACs Bureau which provides a gateway to the bank. 

Within Integra the value of the BACs run updates the ‘Cashbook’ register which is 
then matched with the expenditure on the bank statement. As part of the ‘Cashbook’ 
element of the audit, it was confirmed that reconciliations of the ‘Cashbook’ and 
bank accounts were in place and therefore any discrepancy between the authorised 
value and the amount physically paid would be highlighted through this latter 
process. 

During the audit, it was not possible to provide the Auditors within the timescale the 
evidence that supports that a member of the AP team propose, review and 
authorise the payment run due to complications in extracting the data from the audit 
tables within the system. However Management are able to confirm this control has 
been in place since the 1st April 2014 when the system went live. 
 
The necessary reports have now been generated to support the audit work moving 
forward. 

Head of Exchequer 
Services 

January 
2015 

2. New Suppliers 

23



 

 

Detailed Finding Risk Recommendation 

New supplier forms do not currently 
record the procedures performed to 
validate that the supplier is an authentic 
supplier. No companies house check or 
external check is performed and 
recorded on the form to show that due 
diligence has been performed on the 
creation of the new supplier.  

New supplier forms are also not stored 
appropriately. The forms are stored in a 
paper folder in an approximate date 
order. 

False suppliers could be set up on the 
system allowing fraudulent payments to 
be made.  

 

External validation checks should be 

performed and recorded on the new 

supplier form. Evidence of the validation 

as well as the new supplier form should 

be electronically attached to the supplier 

account to ensure that a supplier form 

has been performed for each supplier on 

the system.   

Management Response Responsible Officer Deadline 

On the setting up of new supplier appropriate checks are made back to the 
company to ensure the validity of information received, however this follow up 
correspondence is not included / noted on the paperwork retained by the service. 
Moving forward the correspondence and / or file note will be retained, including 
highlighting who completed the check and when. 

In addition, we shall begin to upload and scan the change correspondence into 
Integra and attach this to the supplier record to ensure ease of accessing the 
record. We shall also consider further whether appropriate segregation of duties are 
in place within the team or whether the approval of supplier changes should be 
made by a second team. 
 
At the same time it should be noted that any payments to a particular supplier for 
over £35k are separately approved by a member of staff outside of the Accounts 
Payable team to validate the bank account and ensure the invoice has been entered 

Head of Exchequer 
Services 

January 
2015 

24



 

 

correctly into the system. 

25



 

 

 

3a. Reconciliations    

Detailed Finding Risk Recommendation 

No reconciliation has been performed 
from April 2014 to October 2014 between 
the General ledger system and its sub 
ledger for Accounts Payable. This is due 
to the implementation of the INTEGRA 
system which had a go live date of April 
2014. 

• Manual posting error to the 
general ledger.  

• Automated posting errors occur 

between the two interfaces.  

Reconciliations should be performed on a 
regular basis and should be authorised by 
a senior member of the finance team on a 
timely basis. Both preparer and authoriser 
should sign and date the reconciliation 
and archive it appropriately.   

Management Response Responsible Officer Deadline 

This is due to the implementation of the INTEGRA system which had a go live date 
of April 2014. A reconciliation will be performed that will cover the period from April 
2014 to September 2014 in December 2014. 

Assistant Director of 
Finance, CSG 

December 
2014 

3b. Reconciliations follow-up – January 2015 

Detailed finding Audit Assessment January 2015 

The AP reconciliations for September (covering April - September), October, 
November and December 2014 were evidenced as being reviewed and authorised 
in January 2015 after the audit had commenced. We have been informed by senior 
management that regular reviews of the reconciliations have occurred but evidence 
could not be seen to support that the reconciliation is performed on a timely basis as 
a business as usual control.  The delay in preparation was due to the difficulties 
faced by LB Barnet following the transfer in accounting systems from SAP to 
Integra.  

To confirm these had been performed and approved appropriately we have 

Partly implemented 
 
Revised Implementation date :  
31 January 2015 

26



 

 

reviewed the reconciliation from April to September and the November month 
reconciliation.  

We have seen that the reconciliations that were authorised whilst we were on site 
are performed correctly and are prepared and signed off by separate and 
appropriate members of staff.  

A balance on the reconciliation of £145k relating to a brought forward transfer from 
SAP for credit notes was noted as a discrepancy between the balances in the 
ledgers. Per discussion with the Finance Manager, the Council are currently 
undertaking a project to resolve or write-off the balance before year end 
(31/03/2015). 

27



 

 

 

Title General Ledger 

Assurances 

Audit Opinion  

 

No Limited Satisfactory Substantial 

  

 

 

 

  

Date of report: December 2014 
 

Summary of 
Findings 
 
 

Number of key controls tested Number of control design 
improvements identified 

Number of controls where 
exceptions were found 

4 
 

1 
 

3 

Design of controls 

Suspense accounts 

No evidence is recorded to show that the suspense accounts are investigated on a monthly basis. These 

are also not signed to demonstrate review by a senior member of the finance team.  

Operation of controls  

Control accounts: 

• 2/5 exceptions were found where no evidence of review of the reconciliation of the control account 

had been recorded.  

• 3/5 exceptions were noted where the reconciliation of the control account had not been returned to 

28



 

 

the Management Accountant for review for the month.  

Journals:  

• 5/25 exceptions were noted where there was no evidence that the journal had been authorised and 

backing documentation to evidence the purpose of the journal was not provided.  

User Access: 

9/20 exceptions were noted where no evidence of a new user form and/or authorisation email could be 

provided. 

Priority 1 recommendations, management responses and agreed action dates 

1a. Reconciliations – control accounts    

Detailed Finding Risk Recommendation 

29



 

 

Out of the 5 samples tested five exceptions 
were noted. These are as follows: 

• Two exceptions were found where no 
evidence of review of the 
reconciliation of the control account 
had been recorded.  

• Three exceptions were noted where 
the reconciliation of the control 
account had not been returned to the 
Management Accountant for review 
for the month. 

Financial data is incorrect due to unidentified 
balances held within suspense and control 
accounts, which are not allocated promptly 
to GL codes. This may cause information in 
the main accounting system to be 
incomplete and inaccurate.  

 

Reconciliations should be performed on a 
regular basis and should be authorised by a 
senior member of the finance team on a 
timely basis. Both preparer and authoriser 
should sign and date the reconciliation and 
archive it appropriately.   

 

Management Response Responsible 
Officer 

Deadline 

As part of the closure of accounts processes, all accounts held on the Council’s balance 
sheet are reconciled with full working papers to support the balances being held, failure to 
do this would not provide the assurance that the accounts are accurate and reflect the true 
financial position of the Council. As part of this process all control accounts are cleared to 
zero as balances are moved to the correct place. 

All control accounts will be reconciled on a monthly and quarterly basis moving forward and 
appropriate management review put in place.  

Assistant Director of 
Finance, CSG 

December 2014 

3b. Reconciliations follow-up – January 2015 

Detailed finding Audit Assessment January 2015 

30



 

 

We have reviewed five control accounts from November to ensure that they have been 
correctly reconciled and authorised for the period. We have also tested the control summary 
spreadsheet to ensure that it has been completed on a timely basis and is up to date.  

4/5 reconciliations were seen to have been performed correctly, however, one of the 
reconciliations had not been signed off as authorised at the date of testing.  

For three reconciliations that were not completed by the Senior Management Accountant, 
the reconciliation, or confirmation of the reconciliation, had not been sent to the Senior 
Management Accountant for that month to evidence monitoring of the control accounts. As 
such, we cannot confirm that all individual control accounts are being centrally monitored to 
ensure they are completed each month.  

Upon inspection of the control summary spreadsheet, we noted that the majority of this 
document was incomplete and details of who had prepared the reconciliation (and when) 
had not been included in the spreadsheet.   

Partly implemented 
 
Revised Implementation date :  
31 January 2015 

 

 

31



 

 

 

Title Housing Benefit 

Assurances 

Audit Opinion  

 

No Limited Satisfactory Substantial 

  

 

 

 

  

Date of report: December 2014 
 

Summary of 
Findings 
 
 

Number of key controls tested Number of control design 
improvements identified 

Number of controls where 
exceptions were found 

8 
 
1 
 

4 

Design of controls  

BACs reconciliations 

The BACs reconciliations do not currently record evidence of review or sign off or the employee preparing 
the reconciliation. 

Operation of controls  

Intervention process  

• 7/25 (28%) exceptions were found where the review form was not returned within one month of the 
intervention letter being sent out and so the housing benefit claim should have been suspended but 
was not. 

32



 

 

Overpayments 

• 7/25 (28%) exceptions were found where outstanding debts have not been pursued since the final 
system generated letter was issued. 

• 1/25 (3%) exception was found whereby no correspondence had occurred with the claimant 
outlining the proposed payment schedule. 

Standing data 

• 1/20 (5%) exception found where the individual’s access rights were not revoked after so 
instruction from management. 

 

Priority 1 recommendations, management responses and agreed action dates 

There were no Priority 1 recommendations made but as issues were identified over a number of the key controls tested the 

system was given a Limited Assurance rating. 

 

33



 

 

 

Title NNDR 

Assurances 

Audit Opinion  

 

No Limited Satisfactory Substantial 

  

 

 

 

  

Date of report: December 2014 
 

Summary of 
Findings 
 
 

Number of key controls tested Number of control design 
improvements identified 

Number of controls where 
exceptions were found 

7 
 
2 
 

0 

Design of controls  
 
Reconciliations 
No reconciliation has been performed from April 2014 to October 2014 between the General ledger 
system and its sub ledger for NNDR.  
 
Empty Property Reviews 
Empty property reviews are not currently being undertaken, we understand this is due to staff shortages 
and whilst the backlog of properties awaiting initial inspections is cleared. This was the case for the whole 
of the test period under review. 

34



 

 

 

Priority 1 recommendations, management responses and agreed action dates 

1a. Reconciliations 

Detailed Finding Risk Recommendation 

No reconciliation has been performed 
from April 2014 to October 2014 between 
the General ledger system and its sub 
ledger Council tax and NNDR. We 
understand this is due to the 
implementation of the INTEGRA system 
which had a go live date of April 2014. 

The amounts recorded in the General 
ledger could be misstated. Fraudulent 
accounting or human errors may not be 
identified and rectified. 

A daily reconciliation should be performed 
and should be authorised by a senior 
member of the finance team on a timely 
basis. Both preparer and authoriser 
should sign and date the reconciliation 
and archive it appropriately.   

Management Response Responsible Officer Deadline 

Agree that this has not occurred and actions are in place to rectify this and continue 
the reconciliations on a monthly basis. The delay has been due to resources and 
knowledge leaving the CSG team prior to the necessary knowledge required to 
undertake the reconciliations being imparted to the finance team; we have had to 
build up that knowledge and this has led to the delays in the monthly reconciliations 
being undertaken. 
 

Assistant Director of 
Finance, CSG 
 
Revenues & Benefits 
Operations Manager  

January 
2015 

1b. Reconciliations follow-up - January 2015 

Detailed Finding Audit Assessment January 2015 

35



 

 

The CT and NNDR reconciliations for October (covering April - October) and November 
were evidenced as being reviewed and authorised in January 2015 after the audit had 
commenced. We have been informed by senior management that regular reviews of the 
reconciliations have occurred, but evidence could not be seen to support that the 
reconciliation is performed on a timely basis as a business as usual control. The delay 
in the initial preparation was due to the difficulties faced by the Revenues and Benefits 
teams moving off site and the reconciliation transferring to Finance.  

Large reconciling balances were found on all of the reconciliations tested and these 
have not been fully clarified and resolved as of the time of testing. We were able to see 
that the reconciliation was prepared and sent to be reviewed by a separate and 
appropriate member of staff, but the authoriser did not sign off the reconciliation as they 
have questioned the large outstanding balances as these will need to be explained by 
the Revenues and Benefit’s team. As such, as of the time of testing, we could not see 
that the reconciliation was signed off by the authoriser as completed.  As the 
reconciliation has been authorised in January 2015 for the period ending 31/10/2014, 
we would expect that this balance would have been understood and resolved at the 
time of sign off. 

Partly implemented 
 
Revised Implementation date :  

31 January 2015 

 
 

36



 

 

 

4. Assurance reviews for management purposes 

There were nine assurance reviews undertaken by internal audit that are not 
considered audit reports (i.e. they do not give an assurance rating) but none the 
less aid management in assessing the effectiveness of their control environment. If 
a significant issue has been identified as part of these reviews further detail is 
provided within this progress report below. 

 

 Assurance Reviews  

1 
Key Financial Systems 2014-15 Follow-Up on 
reconciliations 

See section 3.1 Key 
Financial Systems above 

2 Key Financial Systems 2013-14 Follow-Up See 4.1 below 

3 Data Quality – Self Directed Support See 4.2 below 

4 
Schools Budget's Data Protection - memo on 
potential data breach See 4.3 below 

5 Troubled Families payment by results No significant issues 

6 Compliance with Ofsted Requirements No significant issues 

7 Project Management Toolkit No significant issues 

8 Children’s E-Finance No significant issues 

9 Community Capacity Grant No significant issues 

 
 

4.1 Key Financial Systems 2013-14 Follow-Up 
 
This work was undertaken alongside the KFS 2014-15 review.  

We reviewed the 13 priority 2 recommendations raised in 2013/14 and found that 9 
have now been implemented, 3 have been partially implemented and 1 has not 
been implemented.  

The recommendation that has not yet been implemented relates to there being no 
evidence that HR/Payroll risks were formally recorded in a risk log for their on-going 
management. We will revisit this as part of our People Management audit in Q4.  

 

37



 

 

4.2 Data Quality  

 

Title Self-Directed Support  

Delivery Unit: Adults & Communities 

Date of report: November 2014 
 

Background 
 
 

Data Quality is central to the Council’s decision-making process, is an 
essential part of the overall performance management framework and 
is key to achieving Council objectives. 
 
We undertook an audit of Data Quality on the Corporate Plan 
Indicator (CPI) 1001, “Increase in the % of eligible adult social care 
customers receiving self-directed support”. 
 

CPI 1001: Performance information 

 

Year Quarter Data Reported 
Outturn 

Target 

2013/14 4 4280 / 6718 63.7% 75% 

2014/15 1 2683 / 2698 99.4% 75% 

 
As per the above, performance against the PI improved dramatically 
in Q1 of this year. Management indicated that the improvement in the 
outturn from 2013/14 to 2014/15 was attributable to a change in the 
definition of the performance indicator, effective 1 April 2014. The aim 
of our work was to confirm this explanation for the reported 
improvement. 

 

Summary of 
Findings 

No audit trails had been retained to support the Q1 outturn so we 
reviewed the outturn as at 31 July 2014:  

Year Period Data Reported 
Outturn 

Target 

2014/15 July 
2014 

2676 / 2717 98.5% 75% 

Our audit opinion is therefore against this outturn as it was not 
possible to test the accuracy, reliability, timeliness, relevance or 
completeness of the reported outturn for Q4 2013/14 or Q1 2014/15.  

 
The Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework 2013/14 and 2014/15, 
Handbook of Definitions, issued by the Department of Health, 
indicated that reported outturn should be: 
 
‘(1C) Proportion of people using social care who receive self-directed 
support and those receiving direct payments’  
 

- For 2013/14, 1C part 1 is presented as the number of adults, 
older people and carers receiving self-directed support in the 

38



 

 

year to 31st March as a percentage of all clients receiving 
community based services and carers receiving carer specific 
services, including direct payments.  
 

- For 2014/15, the definition applies to people who only receive 
long-term self-directed support, excluding one-off or short term 
support such as equipment and reablement. For 2014-15 this 
measure is based on a ‘snapshot’ rather than full-year data to 
better reflect the progress made on personalisation at the end 
of the year. 
 

We reviewed the quality of data in line with the new definition of the 
performance indicator, effective 1 April 2014, and found that the data 
reported for July 2014 did meet the new definition. 
 
There are one priority 1, two priority 2 and one priority 3 
recommendations.  
 
We noted the following significant issue: 
 

• Audit trails supporting the KPI outturn for Q1 were not 
retained for review. We also noted one instance out of twenty 
cases tested for the July 2014 outturn where the source 
documentation supporting the self-directed support status of 
the case was not available for inspection. (Priority 1) 

 
We noted the following other issues: 
 

• Officers responsible for input and processing of related data 
were not all fully aware of the Council’s Data Quality Policy. 
There is an expectation that all officers directly involved in 
the preparation of KPI outturn should be aware of the Data 
Quality Policy and criteria for application as part of day to day 
operation. (Priority 2) 

• Data checks to ensure the accuracy and completeness of 
data were not undertaken for all reporting periods. (Priority 2) 
 

Priority 1 recommendations, management responses and agreed action 
dates 

Audit Trails 

Detailed Finding Risk Recommendation 

We planned to test data 
quality for April and May 2014 
outturn for the KPI as stated in 
the terms of reference for the 
audit, however we were 

If audit trails supporting 
the KPI outturn are  not 
retained for monitoring 
and review, where 
necessary, then: 

Audit trails supporting outturn for 
reporting periods should be 
retained for independent 
scrutiny and testing, in line with 
the Data Quality Policy, as a 

39



 

 

unable to do so as the 
supporting SWIFT Business 
objects reports with the cases 
supporting the numerator and 
denominator figures for those 
months had not been retained 
for review.   

 

We therefore tested the 
outturn at 31 July 2014 for 
which the SWIFT objects 
reports were available at the 
date of the audit. 

 

We tested a sample of twenty 
cases to source 
documentation for compliance 
with the KPI definition. For one 
out of the twenty cases tested, 
we could not locate the source 
documentation in WISDOM, 
for example the Support Plan, 
evidencing the application of 
self-directed support. The 
related documentation was 
subsequently located on an H-
Drive however it was 
considered insufficient to fully 
support the application of self-
directed support.  

 

- effective scrutiny, 
testing and 
challenge of outturn 
will not be possible 
and data quality 
issues may not be 
identified and 
addressed in a 
timely fashion and  

- the relevant officers 
may not have 
sufficient confidence 
in the reported 
outturn to take the 
necessary 
decisions/actions. 

minimum to support corporately 
reported outturn and any other 
key reporting, for example, for 
statutory returns  

 

The Information Team should 
undertake periodic spot checks 
to ensure that reported outturn 
is supported by sufficient audit 
trails / source documentation. 

 

Officers should be reminded, for 

example at supervision, to save 

the relevant documentation 

correctly in WISDOM. 

Management Response Responsible 
Officer 

Deadline 

This will be implemented for Q3 corporate reporting Performance 
and 
Information 
Manager 

Adults and 
Communities - 
Information 
Team 

 

01/01/2015  

(for quarter 3 
reporting) 

 
 

40



 

 

4.3 Schools Budgets Data Protection - memo on potential data breach  
 

Date of report: December 2014 

Background 
 
 

Whilst reviewing the schools budget setting information for 2014/15 
on the website we noted a potential Data breach. As this was not 
specifically part of the scope of the Schools Budgets audit review, we 
issued a separate memo and notified the Information Management 
team. 
 

Summary of 
Findings 

The schools budget information published on the website included 
details of the factors used to determine the budget allocation for each 
school as well as the detailed calculations of the final amounts. We 
identified that there were a number of tabs in the published document 
which had been hidden in the spreadsheet.  
 
The data disclosed in the hidden tabs could allow those accessing the 
information to directly identify individual pupils. In one case the name 
of a pupil was included in the spreadsheet.  

Priority 1 recommendations, management responses and agreed action 
dates 

Website publication of the schools funding 

Detailed Finding Risk Recommendation 

Funding information for all 
schools in the borough is 
published online on the 
Council’s website. This 
includes details of the factors 
used to determine the budget 
allocation for each school as 
well as the detailed 
calculations of the final 
amounts. The purpose of 
publishing the information is to 
ensure there is full 
transparency for schools and 
key stakeholders in the way 
funding is allocated. 

The information is published in 
a spreadsheet containing the 
raw data which feeds into the 
overall funding allocation. 
Each tab of the spreadsheet 
relates to a different school in 
the borough. The data is 
required to be sanitised to 

Access to confidential or 
sensitive pupil 
information may not be 
appropriately restricted 
resulting in a 
reputational damage to 
the Council or financial 
penalties if they are 
found to be non-
compliant with data 
protection legislation. 

a) The breach should be 
reported and dealt with in 
line with the Council’s Data 
Protection policy.  

b) All schools finance 
information on the website at 
present should be reviewed 
immediately and removed 
where sensitive information 
is identified.  

c) Management should 
implement a control whereby 
all information published in 
relation to schools budgets is 
reviewed prior to it being 
published on the website to 
ensure the Council are 
compliant with data 
protection requirements. 

d) All schools budget 
information published on the 

41



 

 

ensure compliance with data 
protection regulations. 

We examined the spreadsheet 
published for the 2014/15 
school year. 

We identified that there were a 
number of tabs which had 
been hidden in the 
spreadsheet. The data in 
these tabs contained specific 
pupil reference numbers (not 
names), the date of birth of the 
pupils and any specific 
educational needs. 

The data disclosed in the 
hidden tabs could potentially 
allow those accessing the 
information to directly identify 
individual pupils, for example if 
you know a pupil’s date of 
birth you could determine 
whether or not they had a 
special educational need. In 
one case the name of a pupil 
was included in the 
spreadsheet. 

We confirmed with 
management that in line with 
data protection regulations, 
the hidden tabs should have 
been removed from the 
spreadsheet before the 
information had been 
published. 

Council’s website should be 
published in pdf format only 
to prevent information in 
‘hidden tabs’ being made 
available in error.  

 

Management Response Responsible 
Officer 

Deadline 

Agreed and to be addressed immediately. Education & 

Skills Director 

Assistant 

Director of 

Finance, CSG 

January 2015 

 

42



 

 

5. Work in progress and effectiveness review 

 
Appendix C includes a list of all of those audits at the planning, fieldwork, or draft 
reporting stages.  
 
Appendix D includes performance against the Internal Audit effectiveness 
indicators. We have met all targets within the plan with the exception of two 
indicators being rated Amber: 
 

1) 26% of the annual plan has been delivered, which is below the target for 
quarter 2 of 32%. This is due to a combination of factors, including some 
audits taking longer than anticipated, and the number of follow-up audits 
being higher than usual in quarter 1. There are several reviews at the 
fieldwork stage and we are confident that we can get performance back on 
schedule within quarter 3.  

 
2) Implementation of internal audit recommendations – the progress of the 16 

high priority recommendations due for implementation in quarter 3 is 
included in Appendix D. 73% of all the priority 1 recommendations due by 
the end of quarter 3 have been implemented. 

 

43



 

 

6. Changes to our plan 

Since the Internal Audit Plan was approved there have been some changes within 
the quarter made to the original audit plan agreed in April 2014 in respect of timing 
and additional audits requested by Delivery Units. 
 

Type 
 

Audit Title Reasons 

Additional Schools Budgets Added at the request of SCB 

Additional Schools Budgets – 
data protection 

Memo issued in response to potential data 
breach identified 

Additional Trade Waste 
Invoicing 

Added at the request of management to 
assess improved controls introduced over 
invoices and credit notes 

Additional Schools Assurance 
Mapping 

Exercise undertaken to determine sources 
of assurance over schools. This exercise 
will inform any changes to the schools 
audit programme in 2015/16 therefore it 
needed to be undertaken in 2014/15 

Additional Children’s E-Finance At the request of management, assurance 
provided over the design of the controls in 
Controcc before it went live on 1 
December 

Additional Community Capacity 
Grant 

Retrospectively asked to provide 
assurance that the grant had been spent 
or allocated in line with the grant 
conditions  

Combined Children & Families 
Act 

Combined with SEN review 

Combined Performance 
Management 
Framework 

Covered as part of the Commissioning for 
Outcomes review 

Combined Benefits Realisation 
Framework 

Combined with the Contract Management 
Framework audit 

Combined Conflicts of Interest Combined with Re Joint Venture 
Arrangements review 

Deferred  Risk Management 
Framework 

Deferred to Q4 to enable a review of risk 
management arrangements throughout 
the year to support the Head of Internal 
Audit opinion 

Deferred Transformation Q3 Deferred to Q4 so that assessment of 
projects occurs after assessment of the 
Project Management Toolkit (completed in 
Q3) 

44



 

 

Deferred Residential Care 
Homes (Joint review 
with CAFT) 

Deferred to 2015/16 due to CAFT reactive 
work taking priority 

Deferred School Improvement Deferred to 2015/16 due to resources 
having been needed on the additional 
audits identified above 

Deferred Public Health follow-
up 

Deferred to 2015/16 to allow full year since 
completion of previous audit of Public 
Health 

Deferred Revenues & Benefits  Review of client-side arrangements 
around Revs & Bens deferred to 2015/16 
i.e. after Key Financial System reviews 
completed  

 

7. Liaison with Officers and External Audit 

The Internal Audit Service is committed to the managed audit approach.  Part of 
this includes regular liaison with External Audit to ensure that our work can be used 
by them as part of their financial accounts audit.  Quarterly meetings, as a 
minimum, occur between external and internal audit. 
 
Regular meetings have occurred with senior officers regarding implementing action 
plans in accordance with the agreed timeframe. 
 
As part of the Internal Governance reviews, Internal Audit officers work closely with 
Governance colleagues to ensure efficient and effective audits.  
 
Officers within the Assurance Group work closely with CAPITA in line with an 
agreed protocol that both clarifies and puts in place practical arrangements around 
the relevant Audit, Fraud and Risk contract clauses. This working protocol supports 
the ‘external assurance’ quadrant of our annual plan.  

 

8. Risk Management 

In 2014/15 we are reviewing the Council’s risk management arrangements during 
the course of the year as part of audits where appropriate. At the end of the year we 
will bring these findings into a summary report which will come to Audit Committee 
and will provide an assurance rating over the Council’s risk management 
arrangements. 
 
The final performance report for Quarter 2 can be found via the link below 
and includes the Quarter 2 corporate risk register. Quarter 3 performance will be 
published at the end of January. 
 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=7485#mgDocuments 

45



 

 

Appendix B: 2014-15 work completed during quarter 3 including 
assurance levels  
 

Audit Opinions on Completed Audits during the period 
 

  Systems Audits Assurance 

1 Children’s Centres Financial Management Satisfactory 

2 Health & Safety Satisfactory 

3 Internal Governance – Delivery Board Satisfactory 

4 Schools Budgets Satisfactory 

5 Budget Monitoring – Street Scene and Commercial Satisfactory 

6 Contract Management & Benefits Realisation follow-up Satisfactory 

 Key Financial Systems (KFS):  

7 Accounts Payable Limited 

8 Accounts Receivable Limited 

9 General Ledger Limited 

10 Payroll Satisfactory 

11 Treasury Management Satisfactory 

12 Cash & Bank Satisfactory 

13 Pensions Administration Substantial 

14 KFS 2014-15 Follow-Up on reconciliations N/A 

15 KFS 2013-14 Follow-Up N/A 

 Revenues & Benefits:  

16 Housing Benefit Limited 

17 NNDR Limited 

18 Council Tax Satisfactory 

 Assurance Reviews  

19 Troubled Families payment by results N/A 

20 Data Quality – Self Directed Support N/A 

21 
Schools Budgets Data Protection - memo on potential 
data breach N/A 

22 Compliance with Ofsted Requirements N/A 

23 Project Management Toolkit N/A 

24 Children’s E-Finance N/A 

25 Community Capacity Grant N/A 

  School Audits Assurance 

26 Moss Hall Infant Satisfactory 

27 Courtland Satisfactory 

28 Northside Satisfactory 

29 Menorah Primary Satisfactory 

30 All Saints N20 Satisfactory 

31 Deansbrook Infant Satisfactory 

32 Garden Suburb Infant Satisfactory 

33 Beit Shvidler Satisfactory 

46



 

 

 

Appendix C: Work in progress  
 
The following work is in progress at the time of writing this report: 
 

Work in progress  
 

   

  Systems Audits Status 

 Mental Capacity Act Draft Report 

 Decommissioning of SAP Draft Report 

 SEN and Children & Families Act End of Fieldwork 

 Information Management Strategy Fieldwork 

 Transformation Q4 Fieldwork 

 The Care Act Fieldwork 

 SPA PCN deletions follow-up Planning 

 Regeneration Planning 

 Assurance Reviews Status 

 Trade Waste Invoicing Draft Report 

 Re Joint Venture arrangements Draft Report 

 Schools Assurance Mapping Fieldwork 

 Data Quality Q3 - Adults CPI 1005 Fieldwork 

 Troubled Families Q4 Planning 

 Transforming Care Grant Planning 

  School Audits Status 

 Our Lady of Lourdes Catholic Draft Report 

 Pardes House Fieldwork 
 
 
 
 

47



 

 

 

Appendix D:  Internal Audit Effectiveness Indicators 
 
Performance Indicator   
  

Annual 
Target 

 

End of Quarter 3 

% of recommendations accepted  
 

98% 100% 

% of recommendations implemented 
 

90% 73% 

External Audit evaluation of Internal 
Audit (previous year) 
 

Reliance 
On IA 

Quarter 4 
assessment 

Average client satisfaction score (above 
3) 
 

90% 100% 

% of Plan delivered 
 

71%* 66% 

% of draft reports completed within 10 
days of finishing fieldwork 

90% 92% 

Periodic reports on progress 
 

Each Audit 
Committee 

Achieved 

Preparation of Annual Plan 
 

By April Quarter 4 
assessment 

Preparation of Annual Report (previous 
year) 
 

Prior to  
A.G.S. 

Quarter 1 
assessment 

Staff with professional qualifications 
 

70% 75% 

Staff development days 
 

5 days Quarter 4 
assessment 

 
* 95% of quarters 1-3 planned activity 
 
 
 
 

48



 

 

Appendix E - Quarter 3, 2014-15: Priority 1 Recommendations due 
 
Code to ratings: 

Shading Rating Explanation 

 Implemented The recommendation that had previously been 
raised as a priority one has been reviewed and 
was considered implemented. 

 Partly Implemented Aspects of the priority one recommendation 
had been implemented however not considered 
implemented in full. 

 Not Implemented There had been no progress made in 
implementing this priority one recommendation. 

 Not yet due 
 

Not due in the quarter being reported. 

 
 

No. Audit Title and Recommendation Responsible Area  Response from Management Audit Assessment January 
2015 

1. Disabled Blue Badges – July 2014 
 
Cancellation, Misuse and Enforcement 
 
Pro-active arrangements for identifying at 
the earliest possible stage Blue Badges of 
holders who are deceased should be 
developed and implemented by Assisted 
Travel. 
 
Arrangements should be implemented: 

• for Assisted Travel (AT) to record 
whether cancelled Blue Badges have 
been returned for on-going follow-up 

 
 
 
Commercial & 
Customer Services 
Director / Head of 
Service Delivery & 
CSG Operations 
Barnet 
 
31/8/2014 
 
Infrastructure and 
Parking Manager - 

 
 
 
In recognising that this is a new 
team in Coventry, a protocol and 
new process will be written to set 
out the respective roles and 
responsibilities of the Assisted 
Travel Team, Parking Client team, 
NSL and CAFT to minimise blue 
badge fraud and misuse. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Implemented 
 
The OLA and Blue Badge 
Misuse procedure specifies 
roles and responsibilities for 
Assisted Travel, 
Commissioning, NSL and 
Corporate Anti-Fraud 
(CAFT).  
 
The misuse procedure 

49



 

 

No. Audit Title and Recommendation Responsible Area  Response from Management Audit Assessment January 
2015 

and recording on BBIS, as a minimum, 
as a reminder to stop future renewal 

• to improve communication between 
Assisted Travel and Parking 
(Enforcement)  by: 
o AT notifying Parking of Blue 

Badges which have been 
cancelled and not returned, for 
 example, for deceased 
badge holders or through the 
badge  being reported to AT as 
lost or stolen, for example for 
reporting at CEO briefing sessions 
prior to street enforcement 
operations each day and  

o Parking notifying the AT team of 
misuse identified by Parking 
CEOs for invoking AT misuse 
processes.  

 

Street Scene  
 
31/8/2014  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

defines how to deal with 
allegations. 
 
Procedures have also been 
devised that confirm that  
lost, stolen and misused blue 
badges, as well as deceased 
badge holders, will be 
processed by AT and 
notification made to parking 
(NSL). 
 

2. At least once a year the Corporate Anti-
fraud (CAFT) team should co-ordinate an 
enforcement operation between CAFT, 
Parking and Assisted Travel to enforce 
the proper use of Blue Badges on the 
street.  
 

Assurance Assistant 
Director, 
Commercial & 
Customer Services 
Director,  Head of 
Service Delivery & 
CSG Operations 
Barnet and 
Infrastructure and 
Parking Manager – 

CAFT confirms it is happy to co-
ordinate an annual enforcement 
operation 

Implemented 
 
On 20 November 2014 five 
Corporate Anti-Fraud Team 
officers and three Civil 
Enforcement Officers, 
accompanied by Hendon and 
Golders Green Safer 
Neighbourhood Teams, took 
part in an enforcement 

50



 

 

No. Audit Title and Recommendation Responsible Area  Response from Management Audit Assessment January 
2015 

Street Scene 
 
31/08/14 

operation to identify Blue 
Badge misuse.  
 
Management have confirmed 
this will occur annually. 
 

3.  Passenger Transport Contracts – 
October 2014 
 
PTS and Children’s and Adults &  
Communities engagement 
 
Children’s Service – Education and Skills: 
The draft SLA should be signed off and 
monitored by the Children’s Service, 
especially in relation to:   

• monitoring the quality of service, 

• regular review meetings between 
PTS and the Children’s Service 
representative,  

• reporting SLA KPIs as part of 
performance and quality monitoring 
clauses in the SLA.   

 
Monitoring should take place more 
routinely in the interim prior to the 
development, and approval of the final 
SLA and the introduction of more robust 
communication arrangements between 

 
 
 
Transportation 
Projects Consultant 
– SEN  
 
31 December 2014 
(SLA completion and 
approval) 
Implemented 
(Review meetings) 
 

 
 
 
The draft SLA is being revised as 
part of the work of the consultant 
engaged to carry out a thorough 
review of home to school transport. 
The Project Initiation Document 
(PID) for this was signed off by the 
Director of Education and Skills in 
August and work commenced on 1st 
September.  
 
Regular Liaison and Review 
meetings between Education and 
Skills and Street Scene Passenger 
Transport Service have been 
established and the first took place 
on 18th September. These will 
monitor performance against the 
present SLA pending the completion 
of the revised agreement. 

Partially implemented 
 
A draft SLA between the 
Children’s Service and PTS 
has been produced which 
contains: 

• Performance 
management, 
including monthly 
reporting of finances, 
complaints and 
statistical data 
regarding service 
delivery.  The reports 
will be sent to the 
Special Educational 
Needs and Inclusion 
Manager. 

• Annual and monthly 
review meetings 
between the PTS and 
Children’s service to 
monitor the SLA.   Interim Head of Care 

Quality,  A&C  
An SLA between A&C and Street 
Scene Passenger Transport Service 

51



 

 

No. Audit Title and Recommendation Responsible Area  Response from Management Audit Assessment January 
2015 

SEN and Children established by the 
Project.  
 
Note: The quality of service clause of the 
draft SLA covered CRB checking and 
checks as to whether drivers held valid 
licences. 
 
Adults and Communities: Responsibility 
for oversight of service delivery and 
communication between the PTS and 
Adults and Communities should be 
clarified and communicated to ensure that 
the service is delivered to expectations 
and that opportunities for improvement 
are identified and communicated. 
Transport plans should be developed to 
formally communicate requirements to 
PTS. Monitoring should be undertaken in 
terms of an up to date and signed SLA. 
 

 
31 December 
2014 (SLA 
completion and 
approval) 30 
September 2014 
(monthly liaison 
meetings) 
 

(PTS) will be developed and 
approved. 
 
The Terms of Reference and liaison 
meetings for monitoring the SLA 
between A&C and PTS will be 
established by the 30th September 
2014. 
 

 
A draft SLA between Adults 
and Communities and PTS 
has also been compiled and 
details: 

• Performance 
monitoring  

• Monthly meetings to 
monitor the contract. 

 
Both SLAs are yet to be 
formally signed off; hence the 
recommendation is only 
considered partially 
implemented, but 
management have confirmed 
that the documents will be 
formally issued by the end of 
January 2015. 
 
Regular meetings have been 
occurring between both SEN 
and Adults & Communities 
with PTS. 
 
 
Revised implementation 
date: 31 January 2015. 

Head of Joint 
Commissioning, 
A&C) 
 
Commencing 
October 2014 
(contract monitoring 
meeting) 

A&C commissions care for service 
users from Your Choice Barnet 
(YCB) under a 5-year contract. PTS 
is used to transport service users to 
/ from YCB establishments. The 
YCB contract is managed through 
regular contract monitoring 
meetings with a named relationship 
manager and dedicated contract 
manager. This forum will be used to 
monitor any issues relating to the 
transport of YCB service users, 
linking into the aforementioned 
liaison meeting which oversees the 
Transport SLA between A&C and 
PTS plus also linking directly to YCB 
and A&C operational management 
as appropriate in order to 
proactively manage or resolve 
issues particularly where these have 
safeguarding implications. 

52



 

 

No. Audit Title and Recommendation Responsible Area  Response from Management Audit Assessment January 
2015 

 

Environment Service 
Manager – Transport  
 
31 December 2014 
(SLA completion and 
approval) 
 

The 2014 / 15 Passenger Transport 
Service SLA to be reviewed by 
Children Services and Passenger 
Transport management based on 
the TAS (specialist public transport 
consultancy) review of 
commissioning through to delivery 
of PTS commencing 1st October 
2014 

Environment Service 
Manager – Transport 
 
Implemented 
 

The first Liaison and Review 
meeting between Children Services 
and Passenger Transport 
management took place on 18th 
September. 

Transformation 
Projects Consultant 
– SEN  
 
31 October 2014 
 

At the meeting PTS presented the 
Street scene KPI report generated 
monthly by the PTS management. 
Transportation Projects Consultant 
– SEN to provide Environment 
Service Manager – Transport with 
comments on items to be included 
/excluded. 

Environment Service 
Manager – Transport 
 
30 September 2014 
 

The first Liaison and Review 
meeting between Adults & 
Communities and Passenger 
Transport management to take 
place on 30th September. 

4. Passenger transport contracts – 
October 2014 

 
 

 
 

Implemented 
 

53



 

 

No. Audit Title and Recommendation Responsible Area  Response from Management Audit Assessment January 
2015 

 
Retention of records supporting 
contractor vetting  
 
The Children’s DU should immediately 
confirm whether it still uses the two 
contractors and if so consider next steps 
as follows: 

• contact them to obtain  assurance 
over their vetting procedures; 

• if this information is not made 
available consider ceasing using 
them. 

The Children’s DU should confirm if it 
uses other transport contractors outside 
the Street Scene PTS Passenger 
Transport framework contract. If so, 
confirm that they were validated prior to 
use. 
 
Records showing how transport 
contractors, which have not been secured 
as part of the Council's PTS framework 
contract, were vetted, for example, in 
terms of  CRB / DBS status, driver 
accreditation and driver training and 
capability, should be retained for review, 
where necessary, in line with the Council's 
Records Retention & Disposal Guidelines. 

 
 
Transformation 
Projects Consultant 
– SEN  
 
30 September 2014 
(mostly implemented 
already) 
 
31 December 2014 
(SLA completion and 
approval) and 
implemented(Review 
meetings 
 

 
 
The only occasions that the SEN 
Team arrange transport outside the 
PTS contract is for Looked After 
Children who have been placed 
outside the borough, and for whom 
PTS cannot provide the service.  
The two cases involved were in 
Peterborough and Brighton. The 
Brighton service is no longer 
required. In the Peterborough case, 
it has come to our attention that the 
contractor was prosecuted on 
17/8/2010 for operating a Private 
Hire Vehicle using an unlicensed 
driver. This led to Peterborough 
Council cancelling their contract with 
the provider. However, in 
September 2012, they became an 
approved operator with 
Peterborough again with a new 
owner/manager (the previous owner 
had died). In January 2013, they 
then wanted to sell the company 
that managed school contracts to 
another party: under Peterborough’s 
closed framework conditions this 
was prohibited and they made the 
decision to sell the company and 

Where services were 
commissioned directly by 
schools, the Children’s DU 
received confirmation that 
the services meet the 
standards in the PTS 
contract.   
 
The Operating Manual 
details transport 
arrangements made in other 
Boroughs for looked after 
children for whom Barnet is 
responsible and where PTS 
cannot provide a service. 
The process states that 
exemptions to the PTS 
framework will require 
director approval.   
 
Both the Children’s and 
Adult’s Delivery Unit have 
confirmed that they have not 
commissioned services 
outside the Council’s PTS 
framework contract which 
required Director approval 
since the final audit report 
was published. 

54



 

 

No. Audit Title and Recommendation Responsible Area  Response from Management Audit Assessment January 
2015 

 
The PTS framework contract should be 
used whenever possible. If there are 
necessary exceptions to this, delivery 
units should request advice and guidance 
from the Street Scene Passenger 
Transport Service prior to any decision to 
procure the services of a transport 
provider outside the prevailing framework 
contract. The necessary vetting 
procedures should be followed at all 
times.  

terminated their routes. 
Peterborough has suggested that 
they will be able to apply to join a 
new framework if and when they 
have one. 
 
Nevertheless, we have determined 
that our policy in making such rare 
provision in the future will be to 
contact the Local Authority in whose 
area the service is to be provided 
and seek to use a contractor who 
has passed their vetting processes 
(provided that they match the 
standards to which Barnet PTS 
adhere). We have replaced the 
Peterborough contractor in this way. 
 
There are six instances where 
transport is commissioned through 
the school at which the child is 
placed. In four of these, transport is 
provided by staff employed and 
vehicles owned by the school. In the 
other two cases, transport is sub-
contracted to commercial providers. 
 
We have contacted the schools to 
confirm that the arrangements meet 
the same standards as set out in the 

55



 

 

No. Audit Title and Recommendation Responsible Area  Response from Management Audit Assessment January 
2015 

PTS contract, and they have all 
confirmed this is so. Our process 
has been updated to include this 
requirement in any future instances 
of transport commissioned through 
schools. 
 

Education and Skills 
Director  
 
Immediately 
 

Director approval will be required 
where external transport contractors 
are commissioned which are outside 
the Council’s PTS framework 
contract. 
 

Director Adults and 
Communities  
 
Immediately 
 

Director approval will be required 
where external transport contractors 
are commissioned which are outside 
the Council’s PTS framework 
contract. 

Environment Service 
Manager – Transport  
 
Immediately 
 

PTS management will support the 
Education and Skills team to vet any 
external passenger transport 
providers in alignment with the 
Council’s passenger transport 
framework criteria. 

5. Permanency Routes - September 2014 
 
Annual Reviews 
 
Annual reviews of SGO & Adoption 
support plans including financial 

 
 
 
Service Manager - 
Provider Services. 
 

 
 
 
Business case to be submitted for 
Business Support to manage the 
financial and business processes 

 
 
 
Partially implemented 
 
Management have appointed 

56



 

 

No. Audit Title and Recommendation Responsible Area  Response from Management Audit Assessment January 
2015 

allowances should be routinely planned 
and implemented.  
 
For reviews of allowances, the adoptive 
parent or special guardian should, in line 
with the guidance, be required to provide 
an annual statement of his/her financial 
circumstances. 

30 September 2014  required to coordinate Annual 
Reviews. 
 

a Temporary Business 
Support Officer to implement 
the recommendation but a 
programme of reviews has 
not yet started. A permanent 
post has been included in the 
new structure from April 
2015.  
 
A scoping report on the 
overall review of SGO 
practice - including related 
financial allowances –is to be 
presented to the Looked 
After Children Project Board 
on 22 January 2015.   
 
 
Revised implementation 
date: 31 May 2015. 

Service Manager - 
Provider Services  
 
31 October 2014 

Updated information on the financial 
circumstances of Adopters and 
Special Guardians to be requested 
prior to the annual review. 
Allowances to be temporarily 
suspended if information is not 
supplied. 

Service Manager - 
Provider Services  
 
I September 2014 

Application of DfE Standard Means 
Test Model & North London 
Adoption Consortium agreed 
protocol on Adoption Allowances to 
be applied to all new Adoption 
Allowances. 
 

Service Manager - 
Provider Services, 
Head of Assessment 
& Children in 
Need , Interim Head 
of Children in Care 
& Provider Services  
 
1 November 2014 
 

Overall review of practice in relation 
to SGO’s to include financial 
allowances 

6. Permanency Routes - September 2014 
 
Permanency process and control - 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

57



 

 

No. Audit Title and Recommendation Responsible Area  Response from Management Audit Assessment January 
2015 

Records management and 
documentation retention 
 
A policy for naming and saving key 
adoption and kinship documentation 
consistently should be developed, 
communicated, implemented and 
monitored during supervision to facilitate 
the efficient retrieval of documentation 
where necessary.  
Documentation, clearly evidencing 
scrutiny and approval/sign-off of 
recommendations and decisions, should 
be retained in all cases to evidence that 
key processes were undertaken and that 
necessary reports were considered when 
decisions were taken. 
 

Service Manager - 
Provider Services, 
Data and Systems 
Assurance Manager  
 
 
 
30 September 2014 
 

Naming conventions for documents 
to be jointly reviewed with the 
Information Manager, revised 
guidance to be issued, key 
documents to be agreed and added 
to file audit template. 
 

Partially implemented 
 
Management confirmed that 
new ICS templates for 
kinship and adoption team 
processing have been 
developed which will help 
ensure that appropriately 
named documents are saved 
in WISDOM from now on. 
However, these have not yet 
been provided to audit. 
 
Management indicated that 
staff have been reminded to 
only use these templates. 
 
However, there was no 
evidence provided of any 
revised guidance being 
issued governing this, or that 
the file audit template had 
been updated to facilitate 
compliance checks by 
management. 
 
The review of the ICS system 
including the incorporation of 
the audit findings is in 
progress with the supplier 

Acting Children's 
Social Care 
Assistant Director, 
Data and Systems 
Assurance Manager  
 
30 September 2014 
 

Review of ICS system commencing 
in September 2014 to incorporate 
findings from this audit. 

58



 

 

No. Audit Title and Recommendation Responsible Area  Response from Management Audit Assessment January 
2015 

and other Local Authorities. 
An updated version of the 
system is expected in the 
summer depending on the 
work required. If this is not 
achievable an interim 
solution will need to be 
implemented. 
 
Revised implementation 
date: 31 May 2015. 

7. SWIFT and WISDOM – March 2014 
 
Back ups 
 
Backups for Wisdom should be tested. 
 

 
 
 
ICT Director (CSG), 
1/11/2014 

 
 
 
Agree.  A project to refresh the 
WISDOM infrastructure and move to 
a new data centre will include 
testing on restore and implement a 
periodic test.  This is due to go live 
by October 2014 

 
 
 
Partially Implemented 
 
The WISDOM Infrastructure 
has moved to new servers in 
the new data centre. 
 
Management confirmed that 
WISDOM data is backed up 
and that reports confirming 
back-up are received 
routinely for scrutiny by 
management.  
 
A full restore of WISDOM 
data using the completed / 
implemented Disaster 

59



 

 

No. Audit Title and Recommendation Responsible Area  Response from Management Audit Assessment January 
2015 

Recovery (DR) solution – 
which is being developed 
currently – will be undertaken 
1 July 2015 which will 
provide formal assurance 
that back-ups are done 
correctly. 
 
Revised implementation 
date: 1 July 2015. 
 

8. Roles and responsibilities for data 
restoration should be defined and 
documented. This should be 
communicated to all stakeholders. 
 

ICT Director (CSG), 
1/11/2014 

As part of the Data Centre Move, 
responsibilities for restoring 
WISDOM to an agreed Disaster 
Recovery plan will be implemented 
formally. 

Not implemented 
 
The formal documentation of 
WISDOM restoration 
processes and related roles 
and responsibilities will be 
defined and communicated 
as part of the Disaster 
Recovery restore solution 
being implemented in 
Quarter 1 of 2015-16. 
 
Revised implementation 
date: 1 July 2015. 
 

 SWIFT and WISDOM – March 2014 
 
Information Governance 
 

 
 
 
Head of Information 

 
 
 
Under the Information Management 

 
 
 
Not due until 2016 

60



 

 

No. Audit Title and Recommendation Responsible Area  Response from Management Audit Assessment January 
2015 

Data classification definitions (such as 
normal, restricted, elevated) should be 
developed and agreed across the Council. 
Staff should be trained  
 
 

 

Management  
 
31/01/2016  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Strategy, the Council will implement 
a work stream to implement the 
Government’s Security 
Classifications Policy (formerly the 
Protective Marking Scheme). This 
policy has been substantially 
changed, and came into force in 
April 2014. An initial assessment of 
the requirements of the new 
Government classification scheme 
will be undertaken by end of June 
2014 with the full programme to 
conclude by January 2016.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Access to case information on Wisdom 
should be restricted according to business 
need.  
 

Head of Information 
Management  
 
31/07/2014  
 

As part of the Information 
Management Strategy, we are 
implementing a project to look at 
underlying problems with Wisdom 
and to evaluate its business 
purpose. We will look at the access 
controls in Wisdom at this point 

Revised implementation 
date:  
July 2015 as per quarter 2, 
2014/15report. 
 

9. Appropriate SWIFT system upgrades 
need to be implemented to ensure that 
staff do not need to resort to removing 
data from applications to work efficiently. 

Programme 
Manager, 
Adults & 
Communities 
and ICT 
Director (CSG) 
 
30/06/2014 

A Swift upgrade project is currently 
in progress which will help to 
alleviate the system problems that 
have led to this issue 

Implemented 
 
The project involving the 
move of the Swift database 
from NLBP onto new 
hardware in Capita’s data 
centre and the virtualisation 
of Swift has been completed.  
 

61



 

 

No. Audit Title and Recommendation Responsible Area  Response from Management Audit Assessment January 
2015 

Although the project did not 
include the formal upgrade of 
SWIFT as originally 
envisaged, management has 
confirmed that it has 
addressed SWIFT 
performance (its slowness) 
which should ensure that one 
of the project benefits - to 
address the issues noted in 
the audit around the SWIFT 
system frequently freezing, 
and data being saved on 
network drives and local user 
desktops in order to keep the 
business operating - is 
achieved.  
 
A formal, more quantitative 
assessment of the level of 
achievement and improved 
SWIFT performance is 
planned pending the 
approval of guidelines 
developed with Information 
Management on acceptable 
levels of off-system storage. 
The date and methodology 
for this exercise will be 
agreed in liaison with the 

62



 

 

No. Audit Title and Recommendation Responsible Area  Response from Management Audit Assessment January 
2015 

CSG IT delivery unit.  
 
To control and prevent 
related poor records 
management practices 
further: 
 
- the Records Manager, 
Adults and Communities 
confirmed that a change 
request to prevent staff from 
saving client documents 
outside of folders on the top 
level of the S-Drive  had 
been approved by the IT 
Change Board for 
implementation.  
-  S-Drive guidance (Adults 
and Communities’ Protocols 
on Saving Electronic 
Documents) was produced 
and was circulated to all 
Head of Services for 
comment. An updated 
version will be presented to 
the Delivery Unit’s 
Information Management 
Governance Group 
for review, approval and a 
decision on wider circulation 

63



 

 

No. Audit Title and Recommendation Responsible Area  Response from Management Audit Assessment January 
2015 

across Adults and 
Communities on 4 February 

2015.   

10. Your Choice Barnet Review – July 2014 

 

Day Centre Staff – Right to work 

 

In all instances YCB should ensure that 
Right to Work checks along with all pre-
employment checks are kept in one 
central location that is accessible to all 
appropriate staff. 

 

 
 
 
Director of Care and  
Support, Your 
Choice Barnet  
 
31 July 2014 

 
 
 
YCB has always ensured 
appropriate pre-employment checks 
are obtained prior to a new recruit 
starting work and will continue to do 
so. The staff files where paperwork 
was incomplete at the time of 
transfer have been updated as part 
of the DBS renewal process. There 
are a small number where this is 
outstanding and this has now been 
bought forward for those individuals; 
there is no reason to believe that 
there are any employees working for 
YCB that do not have a right to do 
so. 
 
All staff records will be stored in a 
central location. 
 
YCB has contractual agreements 
with all agencies that it uses and is 
confident that all pre-employment 
checks are in place as part of those 
agreements, as a means of 

 
 
 
Implemented  
 
A formal inspection 
undertaken by the Quality 
and Monitoring Officer  in 
Adults & Communities in  
November confirmed that all 
staff records, including  Right 
to Work checks, were filed  
centrally by YCB in an 
electronic  filing system.  

64



 

 

No. Audit Title and Recommendation Responsible Area  Response from Management Audit Assessment January 
2015 

providing assurance YCB will 
periodically sample employment 
records of agency workers. Signed 
agreements will be stored in a 
central location 

11. YCB should confirm that pre-employment 
checks including Right to Work are 
contractually agreed with each 
employment agency and that the signed 
final copy of each individual contract is 
kept centrally on file at YCB. The contract 
should detail that relevant checks will be 
undertaken prior to agency staff 
commencing work at YCB. 

 

Director of Care and  
Support, Your 
Choice Barnet  
 
31 July 2014 

 Partially implemented 
 
YCB have conducted checks 
but are waiting on some 
signed contracts to be 
returned by the agencies. 
This will be followed up and 
monitored by the Quality & 
Monitoring Officer within the 
Adults & Communities 
delivery unit. 
 
Revised implementation 
date: 28 February 2015. 
 

12. Regular sample checks of agency staff 
employed in high-risk roles with direct 
access to vulnerable adults should be 
selected and evidence obtained to confirm 
that the appropriate pre- employment 
checks have been obtained prior to 
commencing work. 

Director of Care and  
Support, Your 
Choice Barnet) 
 
31 July 2014 

 Implemented 
 
Checks have been 
completed on 18 agency staff 
at one agency, Medstar 
Social Care Services Limited, 
to confirm that pre-
employment checks had 
been made appropriately.   
 

65



 

 

No. Audit Title and Recommendation Responsible Area  Response from Management Audit Assessment January 
2015 

Your Choice Barnet have 
confirmed that regular 
sampling will continue on an 
on-going basis with one 
agency being sampled each 
month. 
 

13. 
The LBB contract with YCB should be 
updated to include a clause requiring all 
employees / agency staff to have their 
Right to Work status confirmed. 

 

Category Manager – 
Adults and 
Communities 
 
31 August 2014 

The contract with YCB will be 
updated to include a clause in 
relation to requiring all 
employees/agency staff to have 
their Right to Work status confirmed. 

Partially implemented  
 
LBB have developed a 
clause to be included in the 
contract which defines the 
obligations of YCB with 
regard to verifying 
employees’ / agency staff’s 
Right to Work status.  A draft 
performance framework also 
lists Right to Work as a Key 
Performance Indicator (KPI) 
for service providers to 
submit to LBB. 
 
A contract Variation 
Instruction has been sent to 
HB Public Law but the 
contract has not yet been 
formally updated.  
 
Revised implementation 
date: 31 March 2015. 

66



 

 

No. Audit Title and Recommendation Responsible Area  Response from Management Audit Assessment January 
2015 

 

14. Your Choice Barnet Review – July 2014 

 

Risk and Issue Management 

 

A risk and issue management strategy 
should be introduced to ensure that risks 
and issues are consistently and effectively 
recorded, monitored, escalated and 
resolved in a timely manner. 

 
 
 
 
Assistant Director 
Communities and 
Wellbeing  
1 September 2014 

 
 
 
 
Management is confident that risks 
and issues in relation to the contract 
with YCB are being effectively 
managed through a partnership 
approach and a series for informal 
meetings and formal contract 
meetings. Risks in relation to 
managing relationships with 
providers in general are included on 
the Delivery Unit’s risk register but 
these do not specifically identify 
YCB. Management accepts that 
formal recording and documenting 
of this process can and should be 
improved. Alongside the contract 
management of YCB all service 
users are open to a social work 
team who provide a care 
management service working with 
service users and their families to 
ensure that their needs are being 
met, outcomes achieved in relation 
to the services they receive and the 
management of risk in relation to 
individuals. 

 
 
 
 
Implemented  
 
There are now regular 
monthly contract monitoring 
meetings.  Minutes from the 
contract meetings held 
confirm that risks related to 
the contract are being 
discussed and recorded.   

67



 

 

No. Audit Title and Recommendation Responsible Area  Response from Management Audit Assessment January 
2015 

 
The Delivery Unit follows the 
Councils approach to risk 
management and identified risk are 
regularly reviewed by the 
Leadership Team and recorded on 
JCAD. 
 
The Delivery Unit will review its 
approach to risk and issue 
management and ensure that this is 
clearer in relation to managing risk 
and issues with providers and that 
these are consistently and 
effectively recorded. 
 

15. Management should include Your Choice 
Barnet risks within the Council’s risk 
management system. This information 
should then be regularly monitored and 
updated. 

 

Category Manager – 
Adults and 
Communities  
 
1 October 2014 

Risks in relation to YCB will 
continue to be reviewed within the 
contract monitoring process and 
these will be clear recorded and 
updated within the minutes of 
meetings and as appropriate on 
JCAD. 

Implemented  
 
Risks are regularly monitored 
and reviewed as part of the 
contract monitoring process.  
  
Risks have been recorded on 
JCAD, where appropriate in 
line with the Council’s Risk 
Management Strategy.   
 

16. Management should create a formal 
issues log for the Your Choice Barnet 
contract. As a minimum this should 

Head of Care Quality  
 
1 October 2014 

A formal issues log will be 
developed, covering the areas 
identified and used across all 

Implemented   
 
An issues log has been 

68



 

 

No. Audit Title and Recommendation Responsible Area  Response from Management Audit Assessment January 
2015 

include: 

• Description of the issue;  

• Agreed actions; 

• Owners of agreed actions; and 

• Target dates for resolution. 

This information should then be regularly 
monitored and updated. 

Providers. devised which lists issues, 
resolution required, owners 
and status.  Minutes from 
previous Contract Monitoring 
Meetings confirmed the log is 
regularly reviewed as part of 
the contract monitoring 
process. 

 

 

69



70

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Summary 
 
This report covers the period 1st October 2014 – 31st December 2014 and represents an 
up-to-date picture of the work undertaken by Corporate Anti-Fraud Team (CAFT) during 
that time.   
 

 

Recommendations  
 

That the Committee note the CAFT Progress Report  covering the period 1st October 
-  31st December 2014.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Audit Committee 
 

29
th
 January 2015  

Title  

Corporate Anti-Fraud Team (CAFT) 
Progress Report Q3  
October – December 2014 

Report of Clair Green – Interim Assurance Director  

Wards All  

Status Public  

Enclosures                         Appendix 1 - CAFT Progress Report Q3 October – December 
2014 

Officer Contact Details  
Clair Green 
clair.green@barnet.gov.uk 
0208 359 7791 

AGENDA ITEM 8

71



1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 
1.1 The Audit Committee included in the work programme for 2014/5 that 

quarterly progress reports on the work of the Corporate Anti- Fraud Team is 
produced to this meeting.  

 
 
2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
2.1 N/A  

 
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

3.1 None     
 
 
4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 
4.1 None 
 
 
5.       IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  

 
5.1      Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 
5.1.1  The Council has a responsibility to protect the public purse through proper 

administration and control of the public funds and assets to which it has been 
entrusted. The work of the Corporate Anti-Fraud Team (CAFT) supports this 
by continuing to provide an efficient value for money anti-fraud activity, that is 
able to investigate all referrals that are passed to us to an appropriate 
outcome, whilst continuing to offer support, advice and assistance on all 
matters of fraud risks including prevention, fraud detection, money laundering, 
other criminal activity, and deterrent measures, policies and procedures, 
whilst delivering a cohesive approach that reflects best practice and supports 
all the new corporate priorities and principles. 

 
5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 

Property, Sustainability) 
 

5.2.1 The structure and budget that CAFT operate within has proven successful and 

provides sufficient resource and commitment that is required to carry out an 

effective anti-fraud service and deliver the key objectives as set out within the 

strategy. 

 
 
 
 

72



5.3      Legal and Constitutional References 
 
5.3.1 Under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 the Council has a 

statutory obligation to ensure the protection of public funds and to have an 
effective system of prevention and detection of fraud and corruption.  

 
5.3.2 The Council’s Constitution under Responsibility for Functions - The Audit 

Committee’s terms of reference, details the functions of the Audit Committee 
including  

 To monitor the effective development and operation of the Council’s 
Corporate Anti-Fraud Team; and  

 To consider regular anti-fraud progress reports and summaries of specific 
fraud issues and investigation outcomes. 

 
5.3.3 There are no Legal issues in the context of this report. 
 
5.4  Risk Management 
 
5.4.1 The on-going work of the CAFT supports the council’s risk management 

strategy and processes. Where appropriate, outcomes from our investigations 
are reported to both Internal Audit and Risk Management to support their on-
going work and to assist in either confirming effective anti-fraud controls and 
or suggested areas for improvement. 
 

5.5      Equalities and Diversity  
 
5.5.1 Pursuant to section 149 of the Equality Act, 2010, the council has a public 

sector duty to have due regard to eliminating unlawful discrimination, 
harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or under 
the Act; advancing equality of opportunity between those with a protected 
characteristic and those without; promoting good relations between those with 
a protected characteristic and those without.  The, relevant, ‘protected 
characteristics’ are age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation.  It also covers 
marriage and civil partnership with regard to elimination discrimination 
 

5.5.2 Effective systems of anti-fraud provide assurance on the effective allocation of 
resources and quality of service provision for the benefit of the entire 
community. 

 

73



5.6      Consultation and Engagement 
 
5.6.1   None 
 
 
6.        BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
6.1      Delegated Powers Report (ref: BT/2004-05 -2 March 2004) - The Corporate 

Anti-Fraud Team (CAFT) was launched on 7th May 2004  
 
6.2      Audit Committee 29th April 2014 (Decision item 10)  – the Audit Committee 

approved the Internal Audit and Anti-Fraud Strategy and Annual Plan and 
Risk Management approach 2014-2015.  

 
6.3      Audit Committee 29th  2014 -  (Decision item 13 ) – the Audit Committee 

included in the work programme for 2014/5 that quarterly progress reports on 
the work of the Corporate Anti- Fraud Team be produced to this meeting. 

 

74



 

    
1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Corporate Anti-Fraud Team (CAFT)  

Q3 Progress Report:  

1
st

 October – 31
st

 December 2014 

 

 

 

 

 
Clair Green 

Interim Assurance Director 

18
th

 January 2015 

 
 

 

 

 

75



 

    
2 
 

Introduction 
 
This report covers the period 1

st
 October 2014 – 31 December 2014 and represents an up-to-

date picture of the work undertaken by Corporate Anti-Fraud Team (CAFT) during that time.   
 
All CAFT work is conducted within the appropriate legislation and through the powers and 
responsibilities as set out within the financial regulations section of the Council’s constitution. 

CAFT supports the Chief Finance Officer in fulfilling his statutory obligation under section 151 of 
the Local Government Act 1972 to ensure the protection of public funds and to have an 
effective system of prevention and detection of fraud and corruption. It supports the Council’s 

commitment to a zero tolerance approach to fraud, corruption, bribery and other irregularity 
including any Money Laundering activity. 
 
Work processes in the team are designed for maximum efficiency and as such all functions are 
intrinsically linked and are dependent on each other in order to ensure CAFT continue to 
provide an efficient value for money counter fraud service and that is able to investigate all 
referrals or data matches to an appropriate outcome.   CAFT provide advice and support to 
every aspect of the organisation including its partners and contractors.  This advice varies 
between fraud risk, prevention and detection, money laundering and other criminal activity as 
well as misconduct and misuse of public funds.  Some of the matters will progress to criminal 
investigation and others will not, but in all cases appropriate actions, such as disciplinary are 
taken.  It is this element of the work of CAFT that is hard to quantify statistically. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

76



 

    
3 
 

 

Contents             

1. Pro-Active Fraud Exercise  ..................................................................................... 4 

2. Performance Indicators ........................................................................................ 4 

3. Noteworthy investigations summaries.................................................................. 9 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

77



 

 
 

 
 4
  

1
 

P
ro

-A
ct

iv
e

 F
ra

u
d

 E
x
e

rc
is

e
 –

 D
is

a
b

le
d

 B
lu

e
 B

a
d

g
e

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 2

0
1

4
 

 

 

A
re

a
 o

f 
re

v
ie

w
 

 

R
is

k
 b

e
in

g
 a

d
d

re
ss

e
d

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
 

D
is

a
b

le
d

 B
lu

e
 B

a
d

g
e

s 

(Q
1

 J
o

in
t 

re
v

ie
w

 w
it

h
 I

n
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
) 

 O
n

e
 

o
f 

th
e

 
re

co
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s 
w

h
e

n
 

th
is

 

jo
in

t 
re

v
ie

w
 t

o
o

k
 p

la
ce

 i
n

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

o
n

e
 w

a
s 

fo
r 

C
A

F
T,

 A
ss

is
te

d
 T

ra
ve

l,
 P

a
rk

in
g

 /
 N

S
L 

 a
n

d
 

S
a

fe
r 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 
Te

a
m

 
P

o
li

ce
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 

to
 w

o
rk

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
to

 c
o

n
d

u
ct

 a
n

 a
n

n
u

a
l 

B
lu

e
 

B
a

d
g

e
 

p
ro

 
–

a
ct

iv
e

 
e

xe
rc

is
e

 
w

h
ic

h
 

C
A

F
T

 

w
o

u
ld

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
 a

n
d

 l
e

a
d

 o
n

. 
 

V
a

li
d

 
p

a
rk

in
g

 
in

co
m

e
 

is
 

n
o

t 
m

a
xi

m
is

e
d

 
a

n
d

 

co
ll

e
ct

e
d

 
a

s 
a

 
re

su
lt

 
o

f 
n

o
n

-v
a

li
d

 
a

n
d

/o
r 

fr
a

u
d

u
le

n
t 

b
lu

e
 b

a
d

g
e

s 
re

m
a

in
in

g
 i

n
 c

ir
cu

la
ti

o
n

 

a
n

d
 b

e
in

g
 m

is
u

se
d

. 

T
h

e
 o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

 t
o

o
k
 p

la
ce

 o
n

 o
n

e
 d

a
y

 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

in
 t

h
e

 

H
e

n
d

o
n

 a
n

d
 G

o
ld

e
rs

 G
re

e
n

 a
re

a
. 

 

 1
2

7
 

v
e

h
ic

le
s 

w
e

re
 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 

a
s 

b
e

in
g

 
p

a
rk

e
d

 
a

n
d

 

d
is

p
la

y
in

g
 b

lu
e

 b
a

d
g

e
s.

  

 D
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 f
iv

e
 h

o
u

r 
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 s

e
iz

e
d

 s
e

v
e

n
 b

lu
e

 

b
a

d
g

e
s;

 
fi

v
e

 
w

e
re

 
fo

u
n

d
 

to
 

h
a

v
e

 
b

e
e

n
 

m
is

u
se

d
 

b
y

 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 b
a

d
g

e
 h

o
ld

e
r’

s 
fa

m
il

y
 a

n
d

 a
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
tw

o
 

b
a

d
g

e
s 

w
e

re
 s

e
iz

e
d

 a
ft

e
r 

ch
e

ck
s 

re
v
e

a
le

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y

 h
a

d
 

b
e

e
n

 p
re

v
io

u
sl

y
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 s
to

le
n

. 
 

  
 

In
 

so
m

e
 

ca
se

s 
m

is
u

se
 

w
a

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 
w

h
e

re
 

th
e

 
b

a
d

g
e

 

h
o

ld
e

r 
w

a
s 

p
h

o
n

e
d

 a
n

d
 f

o
u

n
d

 t
o

 b
e

 a
t 

h
o

m
e

 i
n

 a
n

o
th

e
r 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 w
h

il
st

 t
h

e
ir

 b
lu

e
 b

a
d

g
e

 w
a

s 
b

e
in

g
 u

se
d

 i
n

 B
a

rn
e

t.
  

 In
 t

o
ta

l 
1

2
 P

e
n

a
lt

y
 C

h
a

rg
e

 N
o

ti
ce

s 
w

e
re

 i
ss

u
e

d
. 

 

 D
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
th

e
 o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

 a
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
fi

ve
 p

a
rk

in
g

 

o
ff

e
n

ce
s 

w
e

re
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 f

o
r 

w
h

ic
h

 P
e

n
a

lt
y

 C
h

a
rg

e
 N

o
ti

ce
s 

w
e

re
 i

ss
u

e
d

. 

 78



 

    
5 
 

2 Performance Indicators 
Table 2 provides an update against all performance indicators as set out within the 2014/15 fraud plan.  

 

No targets are set against each of these indicators, as they are the results of CAFT re-active and 

continuous investigation work.  

 

As this is the first year CAFT have reported quarterly, comparative data is only available for quarters 2 

and 4 and will be reported during these quarters. 

 

Performance 

Indicator 

 

Quarter 1 

April – 

June 

 

 

Quarter 2 

July - 

Septembe

r 

 

 

Quarter 3 

October – 

December  

 

Year to 

date 

Comments 

 Benefit Compliance Team identify and correct  fraud and error in our benefits and council tax 

systems through various methods including dealing with the Department of Work and 

Pensions (DWP) Housing Benefit Data Matches (HBDMS) and the Audit Commissions (AC) 

National Fraud Initiative (NFI) Benefit Matches. The team conduct assessments of benefit 

which may result in an overpayment which is then passed to our Benefit Investigation team to 

further investigate. 

Total amount of 

Fraud 

overpayments 

identified in 

Benefits system 

£112,033 £376,560 £370,321 £858,914 It is important to note that 

this figure fluctuates 

throughout the year 

dependent on the level of 

work within the team and 

the number of data 

matches that are received 

from the DWP.  

Total amount of 

Error 

overpayments 

identified in 

Benefits system 

£262,015 £475,967 £78,484 £816,466 

Combined 

amount Fraud 

and Error 

identified within 

the Benefits 

System 

£374,048 £852,527 £448,805 £1675,380 

Amount of 

council tax – 

single person 

discount  fraud 

identified 

£22,383 £36,528 £35,744 £94,655 This figure relates to the 

continuous anti-fraud 

work in relation to Council 

Tax Single Person 

Discounts that CAFT 

identified through 

investigations that 

residents were claiming 

79



 

    
6 
 

and not entitled to. 

 Benefit Fraud Investigation Team prevents, identifies, investigates, deters, sanctions or 

prosecutes persons that commit benefit fraud in Barnet. They operate in accordance within 

the DWP’s Fraud and Error Strategy and the Council’s Counter Fraud Framework as well as 

relevant governing legislation.  

Number of 

carried forward  

Benefit Fraud 

investigations 

from 13/14  

222   At the time of reporting we 

have a significant amount of 

on-going benefit fraud 

investigations within CAFT.  

So far this quarter there has 

been a steady level of 

referrals into CAFT and 

these predominately 

originate from the DWP 

Housing Benefit Data 

Matching Service (HBDMS). 

 

Number of new 

Benefit Fraud 

investigations 

70 59 88 217 

Total Number of 

closed Benefit 

Fraud 

investigations 

48 79 68 195 

Total number of 

on-going Benefit 

Fraud 

investigations 

244 224   

Number of 

cautions issued 

4 2 6 12 These figures relate to the 

differing sanctions that are 

available under the DWP’s 

Fraud and Error Strategy in 

relation to benefit fraud 

investigations where fraud 

is proven. 

Number of 

administration 

penalties issued  

6 26 17 49 

Number of 

prosecutions 

 

5 4 4 13 

Total number of 

Sanctions 

15 32 27 74 

Number of 

sanctions  

issued per 

investigations 

officer  

4 9 8 21 

 Corporate Fraud Team deal with the investigation of any criminal and fraud matters (except 

Benefit and Tenancy related fraud) attempted or committed within or against Barnet such as 

internal employee frauds, frauds by service recipients and any external frauds. They also 

conduct Financial Investigation under the Proceeds of Crime Act 2000 to ensure that any 

persons subject to a criminal investigation by Barnet do not profit from their criminal action. 

They work in partnership with  UKBA, Police and HM Revenue and Customs to ensure that the 

public purse is adequately protected 

Number of 

carried forward 

Fraud 

investigations 

from 13/14  

10  

 

 Of the 15 on-going 

investigations, 2 relate to 

waste and recycling,  1 

relates to procurement, 2 

80



 

    
7 
 

Number of new 

fraud 

investigations 

(excluding 

financial cases) 

33 16 30 79 relate to adults direct 

payments, 1 relates to 

children’s services, 2 relate 

to catering services, 1 

relates to care homes 5 

relate to assisted travel, 

and 1 relates to school  

Total Number of 

closed  fraud 

investigations 

10 36 29 75 

Total number of 

on-going  fraud 

investigations 

33 13 15  

Number of 

carried forward 

Financial 

investigations 

from 13/14 

13   A Financial investigation is one 

of many specialist 

investigative approaches 

employed by Local Authorities 

when tackling criminal activity 

and it is an increasingly well-

established discipline. 

Financial investigators 

typically operate within the 

legal framework of the 

Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 

(POCA), which introduced a 

number of asset recovery 

powers, including the use of 

restraint orders and post-

conviction confiscation orders 

as well as cash seizure and 

civil forfeiture/recovery. 

Related policies include the 

Asset Recovery Incentivisation 

Scheme, which allows Local 

Authorities to keep a 

proportion of assets 

recovered. 

Number of new 

Financial 

investigations 

3 4 0 7 

Number of closed  

Financial 

investigations 

0 7 5 12 

Total Number of 

on-going Financial 

investigations 

16 13 8  Of the 8 financial 

investigations, 5 cases relate 

to Benefit Fraud and the 

recovery of funds back to the 

council, 2 relate to planning 

enforcement cases and 1 

relates to a council tax money 

laundering case.  

Number of 

dismissals as a 

result of a CAFT 

investigation.  

1 1 0 2 Please refer to noteworthy 

investigations (section 3) of 

the report for further details. 

Number of 

requests 

authorised for 

surveillance.   

0 0 1 1 In accordance with our policy 

on Regulation of Investigatory 

Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) this is 

reported for information 

purposes and to support  

81



 

    
8 
 

statistical return to the Office 

of Surveillance Commissioners 

Number of 

referrals received 

under the 

council’s 

whistleblowing 

policy.  

0 0 0 0 This is reported for 

information purposes only in 

accordance with our policy.  

 

 

 Tenancy Fraud Team prevent, identify, investigate, deter and sanction or 

prosecute persons that commit tenancy fraud in Barnet, ensuring maximising  

properties back to the council where Tenancy Fraud has been proven.   

Number of 

carried forward  

Tenancy Fraud 

investigations 

from  13/14  

79  Of the 81 on-going 

investigations 2 are with 

our legal provider pending 

criminal action,  7 cases are 

currently with our legal 

provider pending civil 

recovery action, 10 cases 

have had notice to quits 

served on them and the 

remaining 62 are current 

investigations.  

Number of new  

Tenancy Fraud  

investigations 

47 34 33 114 

Total Number of 

closed Tenancy 

Fraud 

investigations 

35 31 46 112 

Total number of 

on-going Tenancy 

Fraud 

Investigations. 

91 94 81  

Number of 

properties 

recovered  

17 6 11 34 To date 34 properties have 

been recovered as a result of 

CAFT investigations into 

Tenancy Fraud.  Please refer 

to noteworthy investigations 

(section 3) of the report for 

further details on example 

investigations. 

Number of ‘Right 

to Buy’ 

applications 

denied as a result 

of CAFT 

intervention 

6 4 9 19 This is the first year that we 

have proactively worked with 

the ‘Right to Buy’ service and 

‘Housing Options’ service in 

relation to Tenancy Fraud 

fraud Intervention in this area 

which prevents the loss of 

valuable council assets. CAFT 

have focused on providing 

Fraud awareness training to 

Barnet Homes staff and to 

date this year 73  staff in 

housing options and across 

Barnet Homes. 

Number of  

Applications 

denied as a result 

of CAFT 

intervention 

0 1  0 1 

82



 

    
9 
 

3 Noteworthy investigations summaries:- 
 

Benefit Fraud Investigations 

Ms Potamitis - Relates to an joint investigation with Havering council and the Department for 

Work and Pensions (DWP) into a benefit claimant where there were concerns that the claimant 

may be related to the owner of the property. CAFT investigated this matter and when 

interviewed under caution the claimant admitted that her brother was the owner of the 

property from which she was claiming benefit. She gave no explanation as to why she had not 

declared this on the various application forms. However on further investigation evidence 

showed that in fact Ms Potamitis was actually the owner of the property and so her benefit 

claim was cancelled.  This resulted in an joint overpayment of £189,370.79 housing benefit for 

the period 1996 - 2013. The matter was passed for prosecution jointly with Havering Council as 

there were other family members conducting similar fraud in their Borough. Ms Potamitis 

pleaded guilty and was sentenced to 16 months imprisonment, suspended for 2 years. 

Confiscation proceedings are now on going to recover the lost funds. 

 

Mr Hunter - Relates to a joint investigation with the DWP into a benefit claimant where there 

were concerns that the claimant may have not declared capital in excess of £50,000. Mr Hunter 

was interviewed under caution and claimed that the capital belonged to his Mother but 

admitted he had opened the account. The benefit claim was cancelled by the DWP and Barnet 

Council and this resulted in an overpayment of £27,659.74 housing and council tax benefit for 

the period 2007 - 2013. The matter was passed for prosecution jointly with the DWP.  Mr 

Hunter was found guilty and was sentenced to 24 months imprisonment, suspended for 12 

months and ordered to do 150 hours unpaid work.  He was ordered to pay compensation of the 

full amount of housing and council tax benefit within 28 days.   

 

Tenancy Fraud Investigations  

Mrs A had a 2 bedroom maisonette in the NW9 area. There were suspicions that she was living 

abroad and sub-letting the property to another family member. Investigations began into her 

residency and showed many links to her residing in Southern Ireland. Notices to quit and 

notices of seeking possession letters were issued and a Court hearing took place and the 

decision was made for the property to be returned to Barnet Homes.  

 

Miss B had a 3 bedroom house in the HA8 area. A referral was received indicating that Miss B 

was living in Essex and another family member was sub-letting the house. Investigations began 

into her residency and also the fact that Miss B was also receiving housing benefit in respect of 

the property. In view of the evidence gathered, Miss B was asked to attend an interview under 

caution to discuss the matter. She admitted that she had moved out and that her daughter was 

resident. In view of this fact, the housing benefit was cancelled and this resulted in an 

overpayment of £1623.14. Miss B has now returned the keys to the property, but it was 

decided to pass this case to our legal section for offences regarding the tenancy and housing 

benefit fraud. We are awaiting a court hearing date.       

83



 

    
10 

 

 

Mr and Mrs C had a 2 bedroom flat in NW9. As part of a pro-active data matching exercise, this 

case was investigated as there were concerns that tenants may not be resident. Investigations 

commenced and they were then asked to come in for interviews under cautions regarding their 

tenancy when investigations indicated they owned three other properties and had been sub-

letting the council property. A week before the interviews, Mrs C handed the keys to the 

property back and assumed that no further action would be taken. She was advised that both 

her and her husband still needed to be interviewed under caution as we had reasonable 

grounds to believe a criminal offence had been committed. Both Mr and Mrs C were 

interviewed under caution and the matter is in the process of being passed to our legal section 

for further action.     

 

Corporate Fraud Investigations 
 

Case 1 relates to investigations into fraudulent application for a school place in the borough. 

Investigations revealed that the applicant had indeed given a false address in an attempt to 

secure a school place for their child on the basis that the false address fell within the catchment 

area, the investigation resulted in the school place being withdrawn leaving it available to a 

child who would be entitled to the place and would otherwise have missed out on attending 

their selected school.  

 

 

Case 2 – relates to a temporary member of staff who was found to be making a number of 

personal phone calls from a council phone at NLBP to family members living in Eastern Europe.  

Whilst the monetary value attributed to the calls was less than £50 it was felt that issue of trust 

and a breach of procedures was significant therefore the officer’s employment with the council 

was terminated and reported to the agency.  

84



 

 

Summary 

The purpose of the Annual Audit Letter is to summarise the key issues identified by the 
Council’s External Auditor, Grant Thornton UK LLP, during their audit and inspection 
activity. The letter is designed to communicate messages to the Council and external 
stakeholders, including members of the public. 
 
The External Auditor will attend the Committee meeting to introduce their report and 
respond to questions. This covering report extracts the key messages from within the 
Annual Audit Letter 2013/2014, which is attached to this report in Appendix A. 
 
The following points are drawn to the attention of the Committee: 
 
An unqualified opinion on the Statement of Accounts for 2013/2014 was given by the 
External Auditors, confirming that the accounts give a true and fair view of the Council’s 
financial position as at 31 March 2014 and it’s income and expenditure for the 2013/2014 
financial year.  
 
The unqualified audit opinion was provided on 9 September 2014 for 2013/2014. 
 
An unqualified conclusion was provided by the External Auditors in respect of the Council’s 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

 

Audit Committee 

29
th

 January 2015 
  

Title  Annual Audit Letter 2013/2014 

Report of Chief Operating Officer and Director of Finance 

Wards All 

Date added to Forward 
Plan 

1 April 2013 

Status Public  

Enclosures                         Appendix A – Annual Audit Letter 2013/2014 

Officer Contact Details  
Paul Thorogood – Assistant Director, CSG Finance Service  
Paul.Thorogood@capita.co.uk  

AGENDA ITEM 9

85



 
An unqualified opinion on the Whole of Government Accounts submission for 2013/2014 
was given by the External Auditors. 
 
The External Auditors are in the process of certifying the 2013/2014 grant claims and will 
report the findings to a later Audit Committee.  
 
The matters raised by electors to the 2013/2014 accounts are in the process of being 
responded to.  Once concluded the Auditor will formally certify the 2013/2014 audit closed. 
 
The audit fees for 2013/2014 which can be confirmed at this time are as follows: 
 
The Audit Fee for 2013/2014 was planned to be £224.1k. The actual audit fee for 
2013/2014 will be in excess of the planned value due to the cost of dealing with elector 
objections. The actual 2013/2014 fee will be advised at a future Committee once 
determined and agreed with the External Auditors. 
 
The Grant Certification Fee for 2013/2014 was planned to be £38.4k. The work on this is 
still on-going and a final fee will be reported to a later committee, however a revised scale 
fee of £31.597k (number of certifications has reduced from 5 to 2)  is expected plus an 
additional £2.6k for additional work on business rates. (Appendix B within the report).  

 
 

Recommendations  
 

1. That the External Auditor’s Annual Audit Letter for 2013/2014 be accepted as a 
reasonable statement on the Council’s position in respect of the Audit of the 
Accounts, Financial Performance, Value for Money and Financial Resilience. 
 

 
2. That the Committee consider whether there are any areas on which they 

require additional information. 
 

 
 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 
1.1 The Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice requires auditors to prepare 

an annual audit letter and issue it to each audited body. 
 
1.2 The purpose of preparing and issuing annual audit letters is to communicate 

to the audited body and key external stakeholders, including members of the 
public, the key issues arising from auditors’ work, which auditors consider 
should be brought to the attention of the audited body. The annual audit letter 
covers the work carried out by auditors since the previous annual audit letter 
was issued on 28th January 2014. 
 
 
 
 

86



2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

2.1 So that the Council can consider the external auditor’s annual letter, be able 
to comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it 
gives value for money. 
 
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

3.1 None 
 
 

4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

4.1 None 
 
 

5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 

5.1.1 The Annual Audit Letter summarises the key performance issues and 
achievement of the Council. Those areas of weakness must be addressed 
over the coming year, failure to do so carries the risk of adverse financial 
and/or reputational consequences. This supports the Council’s corporate 
priorities as expressed through the Corporate plan. 

 
5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 

Property, Sustainability) 
 

5.2.1 This report deals with the Council’s audit of the accounts, financial 
performance, value for money and financial resilience. The External Auditor 
provided an unqualified opinion with regards to the Council’s arrangements to 
ensure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 
  

5.3 Legal and Constitutional References  
 

5.3.1 The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 requires that, as soon as 
reasonably possible after receipt of the annual letter from the auditor, the 
members of the Committee must meet to consider it and following that 
consideration must: 
• Publish the annual audit letter received from the Auditor; and 
• Make copies available for purchase by any person on payment of such sum 
the Council may reasonably require. The council do not currently charge for 
requested copies. 
 

5.3.2 The Council’s Constitution, Responsibility for Functions - the functions of the 
Audit Committee are detailed and include “To consider the external auditor’s 
annual letter, relevant reports and the report to those charged with 
governance”. and “to comment on the scope and depth of external audit work 
and to ensure it gives value for money” 

87



 
5.4 Risk Management 

 
5.4.1 The Annual Audit Letter has many positive things to say about the Council, 

but also highlights areas of weakness that must be addressed over the 
coming year. Failure to do so carries the risk of adverse financial and/or 
reputational consequences. 
  

5.5 Equalities and Diversity  
 

5.5.1 There are no matter of equalities and diversity arising from the content of this 
report. 
  

5.6 Consultation and Engagement 
There are no consultations or engagements relevant to this report 
 
 

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
6.1 None 

88



©
 2

01
4 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r 
 | 

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

4

T
h

e 
A

n
n
u
al

 A
u
d

it
 L

et
te

r

fo
r 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u
gh

 o
f 

B
ar

n
et

Y
e
a
r 

e
n

d
e
d

 3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

P
a
u

l 
H

u
g

h
e
s

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

L
e
a
d

T
0
2
0
7
 7

2
8
 2

2
5
6

E
 

p
a
u
l.
h
u
g
h
e
s
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o
m

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4

N
ic

k
 T

a
y
lo

r

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

T
0
1
2
2
3
 2

2
5
5
1
4

E
 

n
ic

k
.t

a
y
lo

r@
u
k
.g

t.
c
o
m

89



©
 2

01
4 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r 
 | 

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

4
2

C
o

n
te

n
ts

S
e

c
ti

o
n

P
a

g
e

1.
K

ey
 m

es
sa

ge
s

3

A
p
p
en
d
ic
es

A
 
K

ey
 i
ss

u
es

 a
n
d
 r
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n
s

B
  
S
u
m

m
ar

y 
o
f 
re

p
o
rt

s 
an

d
 a

u
d
it
 f
ee

s

90



©
 2

01
4 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r 
 | 

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

4
3

K
ey

 m
es

sa
g
es

O
u
r 
A

n
n
u
al

 A
u
d
it
 L

et
te

r 
su

m
m

ar
is

es
 t
h
e 

ke
y 

fi
n
d
in

gs
 a

ri
si

n
g 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e 

w
o
rk

 t
h
at

 w
e 

h
av

e 
ca

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 
at

 L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
gh

 o
f 
B

ar
n
et

 (
't
h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l')
 f
o
r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

n
d
ed

 

31
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

4.

T
h
e 

L
et

te
r 
is

 in
te

n
d
ed

 t
o
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

at
e 

ke
y 

m
es

sa
ge

s 
to

 t
h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l a
n
d
 e

xt
er

n
al

 s
ta

ke
h
o
ld

er
s,
 in

cl
u
d
in

g 
m

em
b
er

s 
o
f 
th

e 
p
u
b
lic

. O
u
r 
an

n
u
al

 w
o
rk

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e,

 w
h
ic

h
 

in
cl

u
d
es

 n
at

io
n
al

ly
 p

re
sc

ri
b
ed

 a
n
d
 lo

ca
lly

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 w
o
rk

, h
as

 b
ee

n
 u

n
d
er

ta
ke

n
 i
n
 a

cc
o
rd

an
ce

 w
it
h
 t
h
e 

A
u
d
it
 P

la
n
 t
h
at

 w
e 

is
su

ed
o
n
 2

9 
A

p
ri
l 2

01
4 

an
d
 w

as
 

co
n
d
u
ct

ed
 i
n
 a

cc
o
rd

an
ce

 w
it
h
 t
h
e 

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
's
 C

o
d
e 

o
f 
A

u
d
it
 P

ra
ct

ic
e,

 I
n
te

rn
at

io
n
al

 S
ta

n
d
ar

d
s 

o
n
 A

u
d
it
in

g 
(U

K
 a

n
d
 I

re
la

n
d
)
an

d
 o

th
er

 g
u
id

an
ce

 i
ss

u
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
.

F
in
a
n
ci
a
l
st
a
te
m
en
ts
 a
u
d
it
 

(i
n
cl
u
d
in
g
 a
u
d
it
 o
p
in
io
n
)

W
e 

re
p
o
rt

ed
 o

u
r
fi
n
d
in

gs
 a

ri
si

n
g 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e 

au
d
it
 o

f 
th

e 
fi
n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 i
n
 o

u
r 
A

u
d
it
 F

in
d
in

gs
 R

ep
o
rt

 o
n
 2

2 

Ju
ly

 2
01

4 
to

 t
h
e 

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e 
an

d
 t
o
 a

 s
u
b
se

q
u
en

t 
m

ee
ti
n
g 

o
n
 2

9 
Ju

ly
 2

01
4.

  
T

h
e 

ke
y 

m
es

sa
ge

s 
re

p
o
rt

ed
 

w
er

e:

•
W

e 
te

st
ed

 i
n
 d

et
ai

l 
th

e 
ac

co
u
n
ti
n
g 

tr
ea

tm
en

t 
o
f 
th

e 
C

u
st

o
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

G
ro

u
p
 (
C

S
G

) 
co

n
tr

ac
t 
w

it
h
 C

ap
it
a 

to
 

en
su

re
 t
h
at

 i
t 
w

as
 c

o
rr

ec
tl
y 

re
co

gn
is

ed
 w

it
h
 t
h
e 

fi
n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 
N

o
 is

su
es

 w
er

e 
n
o
te

d
. 

•
W

e 
id

en
ti
fi
ed

 t
h
at

 t
h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l h
ad

 a
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
in

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e 
n
ew

 C
o
d
e 

re
q
u
ir
em

en
ts

 r
eg

ar
d
in

g 
th

e 

re
gu

la
ri
ty

 o
f 
re

va
lu

at
io

n
s.
 W

h
ils

t 
w

e 
h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
is

 t
o
 t
h
e 

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e,
 w

e 
w

er
e 

sa
ti
sf

ie
d
 t
h
at

 a
n
y 

d
if
fe

re
n
ce

 i
n
 v

al
u
at

io
n
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt
 o

f 
th

e 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 
in

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o
n
s 

w
as

 u
n
lik

el
y 

to
 b

e 
m

at
er

ia
l. 

W
e 

is
su

ed
 a

n
 u

n
q
u
al

if
ie

d
o
p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t
h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l's
 2

01
3/

14
 f
in

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

 o
n
 9

 S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

4,
 m

ee
ti
n
g 

th
e 

d
ea

d
lin

e 
se

t 
b
y 

th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 
fo

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s 
an

d
 L

o
ca

l 
G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t.
  
O

u
r 
o
p
in

io
n
 c

o
n
fi
rm

s 
th

at
 t
h
e 

fi
n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 g
iv

e 
a 

tr
u
e 

an
d
 f
ai

r 
vi

ew
 o

f 
th

e 
C

o
u
n
ci

l's
 f
in

an
ci

al
 p

o
si

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 o

f 
th

e 
in

co
m

e 
an

d
 

ex
p
en

d
it
u
re

 r
ec

o
rd

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

o
u
n
ci

l. 

T
h
e 

C
S
G

 c
o
n
tr

ac
t 
st

ar
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e 

m
id

d
le

 o
f 
th

e 
ye

ar
 a

n
d
 in

cl
u
d
ed

 t
h
e 

o
u
ts

o
u
rc

in
g 

o
f 
th

e 
fi
n
an

ce
 f
u
n
ct

io
n
 t
o
 

C
ap

it
a.

 W
it
h
 t
h
is

 c
h
an

ge
 i
n
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

, 
it
 w

as
 i
m

p
o
rt

an
t 
fo

r 
th

e 
au

d
it
 t
ea

m
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 c
lo

se
ly

 w
it
h
 t
h
e 

C
ap

it
a 

fi
n
an

ce
 t
ea

m
 t
o
 e

n
ab

le
 t
h
e 

ti
m

et
ab

le
 f
o
r 
an

 e
ar

ly
 a

cc
o
u
n
ts

 s
ig

n
 o

ff
 t
o
 b

e 
m

et
. 
T

h
is

 r
ep

re
se

n
te

d
 a

 p
o
te

n
ti
al

ly
 

si
gn

if
ic

an
t 
ri
sk

 t
o
 t
h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l a
n
d
 w

e 
w

er
e 

p
le

as
ed

 t
o
 r
ep

o
rt

 t
h
at

 t
h
er

e 
w

as
 n

o
 im

p
ac

t 
o
n
 t
h
e 

d
el

iv
er

y 
o
f 
o
u
r 

d
et

ai
le

d
 a

u
d
it
 w

o
rk

. T
h
er

e 
is

 s
o
m

e 
sc

o
p
e 

to
 b

ri
n
g 

fo
rw

ar
d
 a

u
d
it
 s

ig
n
-o

ff
 t
h
ro

u
gh

 s
o
m

e 
ti
gh

te
n
in

g 
u
p
 o

f 
fi
n
al

 

si
gn

-o
ff

 p
ro

ce
d
u
re

s 
b
y 

th
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l.

91



©
 2

01
4 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r 
 | 

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

4
4

K
ey

 m
es

sa
g
es

V
a
lu
e
fo
r 
M
o
n
ey
 (
V
fM
) 
co
n
cl
u
si
o
n

W
e 

is
su

ed
 a

n
 u

n
q
u
al

if
ie

d
 V

fM
 c

o
n
cl

u
si

o
n
 f
o
r 
20

13
/
14

 o
n
 9

 S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

4.
 

O
n
 t
h
e 

b
as

is
 o

f 
o
u
r 
w

o
rk

, a
n
d
 h

av
in

g 
re

ga
rd

 t
o
 t
h
e 

gu
id

an
ce

 o
n
 t
h
e 

sp
ec

if
ie

d
 c

ri
te

ri
a 

p
u
b
lis

h
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
, w

e 
ar

e 
sa

ti
sf

ie
d
 t
h
at

 i
n
 a

ll 
si

gn
if
ic

an
t 
re

sp
ec

ts
 t
h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l p
u
t 
in

 p
la

ce
 p

ro
p
er

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 t
o
 

se
cu

re
 e

co
n
o
m

y,
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
cy

 a
n
d
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

n
es

s 
in

 it
s 

u
se

 o
f 
re

so
u
rc

es
 f
o
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
n
d
in

g 
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
4.

W
h
o
le
 o
f 
G
o
ve
rn
m
en
t 
A
cc
o
u
n
ts

W
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 t
h
e 

co
n
so

lid
at

io
n

p
ac

k 
w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l p
re

p
ar

ed
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e 

p
ro

d
u
ct

io
n
 o

f 
W

h
o
le

 o
f 

G
o
ve

rn
m

en
t 
A

cc
o
u
n
ts

. 
 W

e 
re

p
o
rt

ed
 t
h
at

 t
h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l's
 p

ac
k 

w
as

 c
o
n
si

st
en

t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e 

au
d
it
ed

 f
in

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts
. 

C
er
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
 o
f 
g
ra
n
t
cl
a
im
s 
a
n
d
 r
et
u
rn
s

W
e 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tl
y 

in
 t
h
e 

p
ro

ce
ss

 o
f
ce

rt
if
yi

n
g 

th
e 

20
13

/
14

 g
ra

n
t 
cl

ai
m

s 
an

d
 r
et

u
rn

s.
 

T
h
e 

P
o
o
lin

g 
o
f 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

C
ap

it
al

 R
ec

ei
p
ts

 (
C

F
B

06
) 
h
as

 b
ee

n
 c

er
ti
fi
ed

 w
it
h
  
n
o
 a

m
en

d
m

en
t 
o
r 
q
u
al

if
ic

at
io

n
. O

u
r 

w
o
rk

 o
n
 c

er
ti
fi
ca

ti
o
n
 o

f 
h
e 

H
o
u
si

n
g 

B
en

ef
it
s 

S
u
b
si

d
y 

cl
ai

m
 (
B

E
N

01
) 
is

 u
n
d
er

w
ay

.

O
n
ce

 a
ll 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

 i
s 

co
m

p
le

te
 w

e 
w

ill
 r
ep

o
rt

 o
u
r
fi
n
d
in

gs
 t
o
 t
h
e 

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e.
 

P
u
b
li
c 
ch
a
ll
en
g
e 
m
a
tt
er
s

W
e 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tl
y 

d
ea

lin
g 

w
it
h
 t
h
re

e 
o
b
je

ct
io

n
s

fr
o
m

 lo
ca

l e
le

ct
o
rs

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 r
ep

o
rt

 t
h
e 

o
u
tc

o
m

e 
to

 t
h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 

o
n
ce

 f
in

al
is

ed
. W

e 
w

ill
 t
h
en

 f
o
rm

al
ly

 c
er

ti
fy

 t
h
e 

20
13

/
14

 a
u
d
it
 c

lo
se

d
. 

A
u
d
it
 f
ee

O
u
r 
p
la

n
n
ed

 f
ee

 f
o
r 
20

13
/
14

w
as

 s
et

 o
u
t 
in

 t
h
e 

A
u
d
it
 P

la
n
 a

s 
£
22

4,
10

0,
 e

xc
lu

d
in

g 
V

A
T

, w
h
ic

h
 w

as
 i
n
 li

n
e 

w
it
h
 

o
u
r 
fe

e 
in

 t
h
e 

p
re

vi
o
u
s 

ye
ar

. 
 T

h
e 

fi
n
al

 f
ee

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
 e

xc
es

s 
o
f 
th

is
 le

ve
l 
d
u
e 

to
 t
h
e 

co
st

 o
f 
d
ea

lin
g 

w
it
h
 t
h
e 

el
ec

to
r 

o
b
je

ct
io

n
s.
 F

u
rt

h
er

 d
et

ai
l 
(i
n
cl

u
d
in

g 
th

e 
ce

rt
if
ic

at
io

n
 f
ee

) 
is

 in
cl

u
d
ed

 w
it
h
in

 A
p
p
en

d
ix

 B
.

92



©
 2

01
4 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r 
 | 

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

4
5

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 A
: 
 K

ey
 i
ss

u
es

 a
n

d
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d
at

io
n

s

T
h
is

 a
p
p
en

d
ix

 s
u
m

m
ar

is
ed

 t
h
e 

si
gn

if
ic

an
t 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n
s 

id
en

ti
fi
ed

 d
u
ri
n
g 

th
e 

20
13

/
14

 a
u
d
it
.

N
o
.

Is
su
e 
a
n
d
 r
ec
o
m
m
en
d
a
ti
o
n

P
ri
o
ri
ty

M
a
n
a
g
em
en
t 
re
sp
o
n
se
/
re
sp
o
n
si
b
le
 o
ff
ic
e/
 d
u
e 
d
a
te

1.
F

in
d

in
g

s 
fr

o
m

 o
u

r 
IT

 r
e
vi

e
w

R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
a
ti
o
n
: 

T
h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
su

re
 t
h
at

 a
ll 

p
o
in

ts
 r
ai

se
d
 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 
th

e 
S
A

P
 s

ys
te

m
 a

re
 

co
n
si

d
er

ed
 a

s 
p
ar

t 
o
f 
th

e 
n
ew

 I
n
te

gr
a 

sy
st

em
. 

M
ed

iu
m

T
h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l i
s 

co
n
d
u
ct

in
g 

a 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 
th

e 
sy

st
em

 a
cc

es
s 

co
n
tr

o
ls

 t
o
 I

n
te

gr
a 

as
 

it
s 

n
ew

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ys
te

m
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
en

su
re

 o
ff

ic
er

s 
h
av

e 
th

e 
co

rr
ec

t 
le

ve
l 
o
f 

ac
ce

ss
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
re

ss
es

 t
h
e 

p
o
in

ts
 r
ai

se
d
 r
eg

ar
d
in

g 
th

e 
fo

rm
er

 S
A

P
 s

ys
te

m
. 

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
le
o
ff
ic
er
: 
P
au

l 
T

h
o
ro

go
o
d

D
u
e 
d
a
te
: 
 S

ep
te

m
b
er

 2
01

4 
(t

h
e 

re
vi

ew
 i
s 

cu
rr

en
tl
y 

u
n
d
er

w
ay

, w
it
h
 t
h
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 b

e 
im

p
le

m
en

te
d
 i
n
 N

o
ve

m
b
er

 2
01

4)
. 

2.
F

in
d

in
g

s
fr

o
m

 o
u

r 
V

fM
 r

e
vi

e
w

R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
a
ti
o
n
: 

T
h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
su

re
 t
h
at

, a
s 

th
e 

b
as

e 
d
at

a 

b
ec

o
m

es
 a

va
ila

b
le

, a
d
d
it
io

n
al

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

in
d
ic

at
o
rs

 a
re

 p
u
t 
in

 p
la

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 w

h
ic

h
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f 
th

e 
w

as
te

 c
o
n
tr

ac
t.
 

M
ed

iu
m

A
s 

th
e

d
at

a 
b
ec

o
m

es
 a

va
ila

b
le

 f
o
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
in

so
u
rc

in
g,

 t
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

u
se

d
 t
o
 

u
p
d
at

e 
th

e 
in

d
ic

at
o
rs

 u
se

d
 f
o
r 
p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 
o
f 
th

e 
w

as
te

 a
n
d
 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
se

rv
ic

e.
 

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
le
o
ff
ic
er
: 
L
yn

n
 B

is
h
o
p

D
u
e 
d
a
te
: 
N

o
ve

m
b
er

 2
01

4

3.
F

in
d

in
g

s 
fr

o
m

 o
u

r
V

fM
 r

e
vi

e
w

R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
a
ti
o
n
: 

T
h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l s
h
o
u
ld

 c
o
n
si

d
er

 a
d
d
in

g 
th

e 
re

co
ve

ry
 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
p
ar

ki
n
g 

n
o
ti
ce

 d
eb

t 
to

 t
h
e 

K
P
Is

 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

s 
p
ar

t 
o
f 
th

e 
p
ar

ki
n
g 

co
n
tr

ac
t 
w

it
h
 

N
S
L
. 

M
ed

iu
m

T
h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l w
ill

re
vi

ew
 t
h
e 

ap
p
ro

p
ri
at

en
es

s 
o
f 
al

l 
K

P
Is

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e 

N
S
L
 

co
n
tr

ac
t.
 

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
le
o
ff
ic
er
: 
C

la
ir
e 

S
ym

o
n
d
s

D
u
e 
d
a
te
: 
N

o
ve

m
b
er

 2
01

4 
(t

h
e 

re
vi

ew
 i
s 

cu
rr

en
tl
y 

u
n
d
er

w
ay

, w
it
h
 a

 

co
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 d

at
e 

o
f 
D

ec
em

b
er

 2
01

4)
. 

93



©
 2

01
4 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r 
 | 

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

4
6

F
e

e
s

P
e
r 

A
u

d
it

 p
la

n £

A
c
tu

a
l 

fe
e
s
 

£

A
u
d
it
 F

e
e
 (

i)
2
2
4
,1

0
0

T
B

C

G
ra

n
t 
c
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 f
e
e
 (

ii)
3
8
,4

0
0

T
B

C

T
o

ta
l 

fe
e
s

2
6
2
,5

0
0

T
B

C

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 B
: 
 R

ep
o

rt
s 

is
su

ed
 a

n
d
 f

ee
s

W
e 

co
n
fi
rm

 b
el

o
w

 t
h
e 

fe
e 

ch
ar

ge
d
 f
o
r 
th

e 
au

d
it
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
er

e 
w

er
e 

n
o
 f
ee

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
p
ro

vi
si

o
n
 o

f 
n
o
n
 a

u
d
it
 s

er
vi

ce
s.
 

F
e

e
s
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
e
e
s
 £

N
o
n
e

N
il

i.
T

h
e 

ac
tu

al
 a

u
d
it
 f
ee

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
 e

xc
es

s 
o
f 
b
u
d
ge

t 
d
u
e 

to
 t
h
e 

co
st

 o
f 
d
ea

lin
g 

w
it
h
 t
h
e 

el
ec

to
r 
o
b
je

ct
io

n
s.
 U

p
o
n
 s

u
b
m

is
si

o
n
 o

f 
th

e 
co

st
s 

in
cu

rr
ed

, t
h
e 

A
u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
 w

ill
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
ad

d
it
io

n
al

 f
ee

 p
ay

ab
le

 b
y 

th
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, t

h
e 

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
 h

as
 a

p
p
ro

ve
d
, i

n
 p

ri
n
ci

p
le

, a
 f
ee

 v
ar

ia
ti
o
n
 o

f 
£
2,

60
0 

at
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
gh

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
ad

d
it
io

n
al

 w
o
rk

 r
eq

u
ir
ed

 o
n
 b

u
si

n
es

s 
ra

te
s 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
re

m
o
va

l 
o
f 
th

e 
re

q
u
ir
em

en
t 
to

 c
er

ti
fy

 t
h
e 

N
N

D
R

 c
la

im
 f
o
rm

. 

ii.
C

er
ti
fi
ca

ti
o
n
 o

f 
gr

an
t 
cl

ai
m

s 
an

d
 r
et

u
rn

s 
is

 o
n
-g

o
in

g,
 s

o
 t
h
is

 r
em

ai
n
s 

a 
w

o
rk

 in
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

at
 t
h
e 

d
at

e 
o
f 
th

is
 le

tt
er

. B
as

ed
 o

n
 t
h
e 

w
o
rk

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 t
o
 d

at
e,

 w
e 

ex
p
ec

t 

o
u
r 
fe

es
 t
o
 b

e 
in

 li
n
e 

w
it
h
 t
h
e 

re
vi

se
d
 s

ca
le

 f
ee

 o
f 
£
31

,5
97

. C
o
n
fi
rm

at
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 
fi
n
al

 f
ee

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
cl

u
d
ed

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e 

se
p
ar

at
e

C
er

ti
fi
ca

ti
o
n
 R

ep
o
rt

 l
at

er
 i
n
 t
h
e 

ye
ar

. 

R
e

p
o

rt
s
 i

s
s
u

e
d

R
e
p

o
rt

D
a
te

 i
s
s
u

e
d

A
u
d
it
 P

la
n

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4

A
u
d
it
 F

in
d
in

g
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 (
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 a
n
d
 v

a
lu

e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
)

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
4

C
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 (
o
n
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

)
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 L

e
tt

e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4

94



©
 2

01
4 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r 
 | 

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

4

©
 2

01
4 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. 
A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. 

'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 m
ea

ns
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
, 

a 
lim

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

is
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l L

td
 

(G
ra

nt
T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l).
 R

ef
er

en
ce

s 
to

 'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 a
re

 
to

 th
e 

br
an

d 
un

de
r 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s 

op
er

at
e 

an
d 

re
fe

r 
to

 o
ne

 o
r 

m
or

e 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s,

 a
s 

th
e 

co
nt

ex
t 

re
qu

ire
s.

 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l a

nd
 th

e 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s 

ar
e 

no
t a

 
w

or
ld

w
id

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p.
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 b
y 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s,
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 n
ot

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 o
r 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 
of

 o
ne

 a
no

th
er

. 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l d

oe
s 

no
t p

ro
vi

de
 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 c

lie
nt

s.
 

g
ra

n
t-

th
o

rn
to

n
.c

o
.u

k

95



96

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Summary 

The purpose of the report is to consider the report from the External Auditors on the 
Council’s management arrangements in respect of the certification process for grants. 
 
The Council submitted two grant claims and returns to government departments and other 
bodies requiring external audit certification in 2013/2014, representing a claim value of 
£262m. 
 
Under Audit Commission guidance, to provide assurance to the grant paying bodies, the 
Council’s External Auditor reviews and certifies all claims in excess of £0.500m after 
verifying  that all expenditure  incurred by the Council qualifies under the terms and 
conditions of the grant. Grants under £0.125m do not have to be certified and only limited 
checks are required for grants between £0.125m and £0.500m. 
 
Key messages from the External Auditors are as follows: 
 
• All claims were submitted and certified within the required deadlines. 
• Of the two claims certified, one was issue free and one required amendment and 
qualification 
• Supporting working papers were of a good quality, which helped to enable 

 

Audit Committee 

29
h
 January 2015 

  

Title  
Grants Certification Work Report 

2013/2014 

Report of 
Chief Operating Officer and Director of 

Finance 

Wards All 

Date added to Forward 
Plan 

1 April 2013 

Status Public  

Enclosures Appendix A – Certification Work Report 2013/2014 

Officer Contact Details  
Paul Thorogood – Assistant Director, CSG Finance Service  
Paul.Thorogood@capita.co.uk  

AGENDA ITEM 10

97



certification within the deadlines 
 
The following performance is drawn to the attention of this Committee. It summarises the 
Council’s performance against key certification performance targets and prior year’s 
performance: 
 

Performance 
Measure 

Target 
Performance 

2013/2014 
Performance 

2012/2013 

Number of claims N/A 2 5 

Claims submitted 
on time 

100% 100% 100% 

Claims certified on 
time 

100% 100% 100% 

Claims amended 
by the Auditor 

0 1 2 

Claims qualified by 
the Auditor 

0 1 1 

 
Table 1 – Council’s performance against key certification performance targets and prior 
year’s performance 
 
Overall the Council’s performance in preparing claims and returns is broadly consistent 
with 2013/2014. 
 
In 2013/2014 the total number of claims requiring certification fell from 5 to 2, the three 
claims no longer requiring certification are the National Domestic Rate return, The 
Teacher’s Pension return and the Single Programme (RG31) return. 
 
In 2013/2014 the number of claims requiring amendment fell from 2 to 1. 
 
In 2013/2014 one claim was qualified, the Housing and Council Tax Benefit claim. It should 
be noted that this is a complex return and it is not unusual for this return to be subject to 
qualification. The return received an amendment of £0.006m on the £249.283m claim. 
 
The grant fee for 2013/2014 was £31.6k  
  

 

Recommendations  

1. That the Committee note the report.  

2. That the matters raised by the External Auditors relating to the grants 
submission and certification process are noted by the Committee 

3. That the Committee consider whether there are any areas on which they 
require additional information. 

 
 

 

98



1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 
1.1 The Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice requires auditors to prepare 

an annual Grant Certification report and issue it to each audited body. 
 
1.2 The purpose is to provide assurance to the grant paying bodies. The Council’s 

External Auditor reviews and certifies all claims in excess of £0.500m after 
verifying  that all expenditure  incurred by the Council qualifies under the 
terms and conditions of the grant. Grants under £0.125m do not have to be 
certified and only limited checks are required for grants between £0.125m and 
£0.500m  
 
 

2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

2.1 So that the Council can consider the external auditor’s certification report, be 
able to comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure 
it gives value for money. 
 
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

3.1 None 
 
 

4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

4.1 None 
 
 

5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 
5.1.1 The Grants Report addresses fundamental aspects of management 

arrangements in Barnet that relate to the Council’s ‘Better Services with Less 
Money’ corporate priority.  

 
 
5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 

Property, Sustainability) 
 

5.2.1 The grants submission process is the final stage in the process for receiving 
external funds from third parties. As noted above, if there are weaknesses in 
the systems for monitoring and claiming monies, these funds could potentially 
be at risk.  
 

5.3 Legal and Constitutional References  
 

5.3.1 The recommendations of this report do not give rise to any specific legal 
issues.  

99



 

5.3.2 The Council’s Constitution, Responsibility for Functions - the functions of the 
Audit Committee are detailed and include “To consider the external auditor’s 
annual letter, relevant reports and the report to those charged with 
governance” and “To consider specific reports as agreed with the external 
auditor.” 
 

5.4 Risk Management 
 

5.4.1 The Grants Certification Work Report summarises Grant Thornton’s overall 
assessment of the Council’s management arrangements in respect of the 
certification process of grant claims, however it also draws attention to 
significant matters in relation to individual claims. Failure to address these 
matters can place at risk the receipt of external funding that the Council is 
entitled to and has budgeted for.  
  

5.5 Equalities and Diversity 
  

5.5.1 The Grants Certification Work Report covers the arrangements in place for 
securing grants across services within the authority. This in turn impacts on all 
members of the community. 
  

5.6 Consultation and Engagement 
 

5.6.1 There are no consultations or engagements relevant to this report.  
 
 

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
6.1 None 

 

 
 
 
 
 

100



©
 2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
w

or
k 

re
po

rt
 fo

r 
LB

 B
ar

ne
t 

 | 
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
5

C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 r
ep

o
rt

 2
01

3/
14

fo
r 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u
gh

 o
f 

B
ar

n
et

Y
e
a
r 

e
n

d
e
d

 3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

P
a
u

l 
H

u
g

h
e
s

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

L
e
a
d

T
0
2
0
 7

7
2
8
 2

2
5
6

E
 

p
a
u
l.
h
u
g
h
e
s
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o
m

N
ic

k
 T

a
y
lo

r

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

T
0
1
2
2
3
 2

2
5
5
1
4

E
 

n
ic

k
.t

a
y
lo

r@
u
k
.g

t.
c
o
m

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5

101



©
 2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
w

or
k 

re
po

rt
 fo

r 
LB

 B
ar

ne
t 

 | 
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
5

2

C
o
n
te
n
ts

S
e
c
ti
o
n

P
a
g
e

1.
S
u
m
m
ar
y 
o
f 
fi
n
d
in
gs

3

A
p
p
en
d
ic
es

A
  
D
et
ai
ls
 o
f 
cl
ai
m
s 
an
d
 r
et
u
rn
s 
ce
rt
if
ie
d
 f
o
r 
20
13
/
14

6

B
  
A
ct
io
n
 p
la
n

7

C
  
F
ee
s

8

102



©
 2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
w

or
k 

re
po

rt
 fo

r 
LB

 B
ar

ne
t 

 | 
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
5

3

S
u
m
m
ar
y 
o
f 
fi
n
d
in
gs

S
u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 
fi
n
d
in

g
s

In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
W
e 
ar
e 
re
q
u
ir
ed
 t
o
 c
er
ti
fy
 c
er
ta
in
 c
la
im
s 
an
d
 r
et
u
rn
s 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 b
y 
th
e 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 

B
o
ro
u
gh
 o
f 
B
ar
n
et
 (
't
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l')
. T
h
is
 c
er
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
 t
yp
ic
al
ly
 t
ak
es
 p
la
ce
 s
ix
 t
o
 n
in
e 

m
o
n
th
s 
af
te
r 
th
e 
cl
ai
m
 p
er
io
d
 a
n
d
 r
ep
re
se
n
ts
 a
 f
in
al
 b
u
t 
im
p
o
rt
an
t 
p
ar
t 
o
f 
th
e 

p
ro
ce
ss
 t
o
 c
o
n
fi
rm
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l's
 e
n
ti
tl
em
en
t 
to
 f
u
n
d
in
g.

W
e 
h
av
e 
ce
rt
if
ie
d
 t
w
o
 c
la
im
s 
an
d
 r
et
u
rn
s 
fo
r 
th
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 y
ea
r 
20
1
3/
14
 r
el
at
in
g 
to
 

ex
p
en
d
it
u
re
 o
f 
£
26
2 
m
ill
io
n
. 

T
h
is
 r
ep
o
rt
 s
u
m
m
ar
is
es
 o
u
r 
o
ve
ra
ll 
as
se
ss
m
en
t 
o
f 
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l’s
 m
an
ag
em
en
t 

ar
ra
n
ge
m
en
ts
 i
n
 r
es
p
ec
t 
o
f 
th
e 
ce
rt
if
ic
at
io
n
 p
ro
ce
ss
 a
n
d
 d
ra
w
s 
at
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

si
gn
if
ic
an
t 
m
at
te
rs
 i
n
 r
el
at
io
n
 t
o
 in
d
iv
id
u
al
 c
la
im
s.

A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

te
x

t 
to

 c
e

r
ti

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

 
A
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 f
o
r 
ce
rt
if
ic
at
io
n
 a
re
 p
re
sc
ri
b
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
, w
h
ic
h
 

ag
re
es
 t
h
e 
sc
o
p
e 
o
f 
th
e 
w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 e
ac
h
 r
el
ev
an
t 
go
ve
rn
m
en
t 
d
ep
ar
tm
en
t 
o
r 

ag
en
cy
, 
an
d
 is
su
es
 a
u
d
it
o
rs
 w
it
h
 a
 C
er
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
 I
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
 (
C
I)
 f
o
r 
ea
ch
 s
p
ec
if
ic
 

cl
ai
m
 o
r 
re
tu
rn
. 

O
u
r 
ap
p
ro
ac
h
 t
o
 c
er
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
, t
h
e 
ro
le
s 
an
d
 r
es
p
o
n
si
b
ili
ti
es
 o
f 
th
e 
va
ri
o
u
s 

p
ar
ti
es
 i
n
vo
lv
ed
 a
n
d
 t
h
e 
sc
o
p
e 
o
f 
th
e 
w
o
rk
 w
e 
p
er
fo
rm
 w
er
e 
se
t 
o
u
t 
in
 o
u
r 

C
er
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 i
ss
u
ed
 t
o
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l i
n
 J
u
n
e 
20
14
. 

K
e

y
 m

e
s
s
a

g
e

s
 

A
 s
u
m
m
ar
y 
o
f 
al
l c
la
im
s 
an
d
 r
et
u
rn
s 
su
b
je
ct
 t
o
 c
er
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
 i
s 
p
ro
vi
d
ed
 a
t 

A
p
p
en
d
ix
 A
. T
h
e 
ke
y 
m
es
sa
ge
s 
fr
o
m
 o
u
r 
ce
rt
if
ic
at
io
n
 w
o
rk
 a
re
 s
u
m
m
ar
is
ed
 i
n
 

th
e 
ta
b
le
 b
el
o
w
.

A
sp
ec
t
o
f 

ce
rt
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
 

a
rr
a
n
g
em

en
ts

K
ey
 M

es
sa
g
es

R
A
G

ra
ti
n
g

S
u
b
m
is
si
o
n
 &
 

ce
rt
if
ic
a
ti
o
n

A
ll 
cl
ai
m
s 
w
er
e 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 a
n
d
 c
er
ti
fi
ed
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e 
re
q
u
ir
ed
 d
ea
d
lin
es
.

�

A
cc
u
ra
cy

o
f 
cl
a
im

 

fo
rm

s 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 

th
e 
a
u
d
it
o
r 

(i
n
cl
u
d
in
g
 

a
m
en
d
m
en
ts
 &
 

q
u
a
li
fi
ca
ti
o
n
s)

O
f 
th
e 
tw
o
 c
la
im
s 
ce
rt
if
ie
d
, o
n
e 
w
as
 i
ss
u
e 

fr
ee
, w
h
ils
t
th
e 
H
o
u
si
n
g 
B
en
ef
it
 S
u
b
si
d
y 

cl
ai
m
 r
eq
u
ir
ed
 a
m
en
d
m
en
t 
an
d
 

q
u
al
if
ic
at
io
n
. 

�

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 p
a
p
er
s

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g 
w
o
rk
in
g 
p
ap
er
s 
w
er
e 
o
f 
a 
go
o
d
 

st
an
d
ar
d
, w
h
ic
h
 h
el
p
ed
 e
n
ab
le
 c
er
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e 
d
ea
d
lin
es
. 

�

103



©
 2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
w

or
k 

re
po

rt
 fo

r 
LB

 B
ar

ne
t 

 | 
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
5

4

S
u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 
fi
n
d
in

g
s

C
e

r
ti

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

 f
e

e
s

T
h
e 
in
d
ic
at
iv
e 
ce
rt
if
ic
at
io
n
 f
ee
 s
et
 b
y 
th
e 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
 f
o
r 
20
13
/
14
 f
o
r 
th
e 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B
o
ro
u
gh
 o
f 
B
ar
n
et
 i
s 
b
as
ed
 o
n
 f
in
al
 2
01
1/
12
 c
er
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
 f
ee
s,
 r
ef
le
ct
in
g 

th
e 
am
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
w
o
rk
 r
eq
u
ir
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
au
d
it
o
r 
to
 c
er
ti
fy
 t
h
e 
cl
ai
m
s 
an
d
 r
et
u
rn
s 
in
 t
h
at
 

ye
ar
. 
F
ee
s 
fo
r 
sc
h
em
es
 n
o
 lo
n
ge
r 
re
q
u
ir
in
g 
ce
rt
if
ic
at
io
n
 (
su
ch
 a
s 
th
e 
n
at
io
n
al
 n
o
n
-

d
o
m
es
ti
c 
ra
te
s 
re
tu
rn
) 
h
av
e 
b
ee
n
 r
em
o
ve
d
. T
h
e 
fe
es
 f
o
r 
ce
rt
if
ic
at
io
n
 o
f 
h
o
u
si
n
g 

b
en
ef
it
 s
u
b
si
d
y 
cl
ai
m
s 
w
er
e 
re
d
u
ce
d
 b
y 
12
 p
er
 c
en
t,
 t
o
 r
ef
le
ct
 t
h
e 
re
m
o
va
l 
o
f 

co
u
n
ci
l 
ta
x 
b
en
ef
it
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e 
sc
h
em
e.
 

T
h
e 
in
d
ic
at
iv
e 
ce
rt
if
ic
at
io
n
 f
ee
 f
o
r 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 B
o
ro
u
gh
 o
f 
B
ar
n
et
 f
o
r 
20
13
/
14
 w
as
 

£
31
,5
97
an
d
 t
h
is
 i
s 
al
so
 t
h
e 
ac
tu
al
 f
ee
.
M
o
re
 d
et
ai
l i
s 
se
t 
o
u
t 
in
 A
p
p
en
d
ix
 C
.

T
h

e
 w

a
y
 f

o
rw

a
r
d

 
W
e 
se
t 
o
u
t 
re
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
s 
to
 a
d
d
re
ss
 t
h
e 
ke
y 
m
es
sa
ge
s 
ab
o
ve
 a
n
d
 o
th
er
 

fi
n
d
in
gs
 a
ri
si
n
g 
fr
o
m
 o
u
r 
ce
rt
if
ic
at
io
n
 w
o
rk
 a
t 
A
p
p
en
d
ix
 B
. 

Im
p
le
m
en
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e 
ag
re
ed
 r
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
s 
w
ill
 a
ss
is
t 
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l i
n
 

co
m
p
ili
n
g 
ac
cu
ra
te
 a
n
d
 t
im
el
y 
cl
ai
m
s 
fo
r 
ce
rt
if
ic
at
io
n
. T
h
is
 w
ill
 r
ed
u
ce
 t
h
e 
ri
sk
 o
f 

p
en
al
ti
es
 f
o
r 
la
te
 s
u
b
m
is
si
o
n
, p
o
te
n
ti
al
 r
ep
ay
m
en
t 
o
f 
gr
an
t 
an
d
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 f
ee
s.

A
c
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
m
e
n
ts

W
e 
w
o
u
ld
 li
ke
 t
o
 t
ak
e 
th
is
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y 
to
 t
h
an
k 
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 

o
ff
ic
er
s 
fo
r 
th
ei
r 
as
si
st
an
ce
 a
n
d
 c
o
-o
p
er
at
io
n
 d
u
ri
n
g 
th
e 
co
u
rs
e 
o
f 

th
e 
ce
rt
if
ic
at
io
n
 p
ro
ce
ss
.

G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P

Ja
n
u
a
ry
 2
01
5

104



©
 2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
w

or
k 

re
po

rt
 fo

r 
LB

 B
ar

ne
t 

 | 
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
5

5

A
p

p
en

d
ic

es

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

105



©
 2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
w

or
k 

re
po

rt
 fo

r 
LB

 B
ar

ne
t 

 | 
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
5

6

A
p
p
en
d
ix
 A
: D

et
ai
ls
 o
f 
cl
ai
m
s 
an
d
 r
et
u
rn
s 
ce
rt
if
ie
d
 f
o
r 
20
13
/
14

C
la
im

o
r 
re
tu
rn

V
a
lu
e

A
m
en
d
ed
?

A
m
en
d
m
en
t

Q
u
a
li
fi
ed
?

C
o
m
m
en
ts

H
o
u
si
n
g
B
en
ef
it
 S
u
b
si
d
y 

(B
E
N
01
)

£
24
9,
28
2,
93
9

Y
es

£
5,
97
7

Y
es

In
it
ia
l t
es
ti
n
g 
o
f 
20
 c
as
es
 f
o
r 
ea
ch
 b
en
ef
it
 

ty
p
e 
id
en
ti
fi
ed
 t
h
re
e 
ca
se
s 
w
it
h
 e
rr
o
rs
, o
n
e 

in
 r
el
at
io
n
 t
o
 e
ac
h
 b
en
ef
it
ty
p
e.
 T
h
is
 

re
q
u
ir
ed
 3
 s
et
s 
o
f 
40
+
 t
es
ti
n
g.
 F
ro
m
 t
h
e 

ad
d
it
io
n
al
 1
20
 c
as
es
 t
es
te
d
, 
n
o
 f
u
rt
h
er
 

er
ro
rs
 w
er
e 
id
en
ti
fi
ed
. B
as
ed
 o
n
 t
h
e 

n
at
u
re
 o
f 
th
e 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e 
si
ze
 o
f 

th
e 
er
ro
rs
 f
o
u
n
d
, i
t 
w
as
 c
o
n
si
d
er
ed
 

u
n
lik
el
y 
th
at
 e
ve
n
 s
ig
n
if
ic
an
t 
ad
d
it
io
n
al
 

w
o
rk
 w
o
u
ld
 r
es
u
lt
 i
n
 a
m
en
d
m
en
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e 

cl
ai
m
 f
o
rm
 t
h
at
 w
o
u
ld
 h
av
e 
en
ab
le
d
 u
s 
to
 

co
n
cl
u
d
e 
th
at
 i
t 
w
as
 f
ai
rl
y 
st
at
ed
. 

P
o
o
lin
g 
o
f 
H
o
u
si
n
g 
C
ap
it
al
 

R
ec
ei
p
ts
 (
C
F
B
06
)

£
12
,7
55
,4
68

N
o

-
N
o

C
la
im
 c
er
ti
fi
ed
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
is
su
e.

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

106



©
 2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
w

or
k 

re
po

rt
 fo

r 
LB

 B
ar

ne
t 

 | 
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
5

7

A
p
p
en
d
ix
 B
: A

ct
io
n
 p
la
n

P
ri

o
ri

ty
H

ig
h

-
S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
e
ff

e
c
t 
o
n
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

M
e
d

iu
m

–
S

o
m

e
 e

ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

L
o

w
-

B
e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e

R
ec

N
o
.

R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
a
ti
o
n

P
ri
o
ri
ty

M
a
n
a
g
em

en
t 
re
sp
o
n
se

Im
p
le
m
en
ta
ti
o
n
d
a
te
 &
 

re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
y

1
T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l s
h
o
u
ld
 r
ev
ie
w
 i
ts
 in
te
rn
al
 

q
u
al
it
y
co
n
tr
o
ls
 f
o
r 
p
ro
ce
ss
in
g 
an
d
 

re
vi
ew
in
g 
H
o
u
si
n
g 
B
en
ef
it
 c
la
im
s 
in
 o
rd
er
 

to
 h
el
p
 p
re
ve
n
t 
er
ro
rs
 in
 t
h
e 
as
se
ss
m
en
t 

p
ro
ce
ss
. 

M
ed
iu
m

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

107



©
 2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
w

or
k 

re
po

rt
 fo

r 
LB

 B
ar

ne
t 

 | 
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
5

8

A
p
p
en
d
ix
 C
: F
ee
s

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

C
la
im

 o
r 
re
tu
rn

20
12
/
13
 f
ee
 (
£
) 

20
13
/
14
 

in
d
ic
a
ti
ve
 

fe
e
(£
)

20
13
/
14
 a
ct
u
a
l 

fe
e 
(£
)

V
a
ri
a
n
ce
 

ye
a
r 
o
n
ye
a
r 

(£
)

E
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
si
g
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
va
ri
a
n
ce
s

H
o
u
si
n
g 
B
en
ef
it
s 
S
u
b
si
d
y 

(B
E
N
01
)

32
,7
52

28
,8
22

28
,8
22

(3
,9
30
)
12
%
fe
e 
re
d
u
ct
io
n
 t
o
 r
ef
le
ct
 t
h
e 
re
m
o
va
l 

o
f 
C
o
u
n
ci
l T
ax
 B
en
ef
it
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e 
sc
h
em
e 

P
o
o
lin
g 
o
f 
H
o
u
si
n
g 
C
ap
it
al

R
ec
ei
p
ts
 (
C
G
B
06
)

2,
77
5

2,
77
5

2,
77
5

-
n
/
a 
–
cl
ai
m
 u
n
ch
an
ge
d

T
o
ta
l

33
,5
30

31
,5
97

31
,5
97

(3
,9
30
)

108



©
 2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
w

or
k 

re
po

rt
 fo

r 
LB

 B
ar

ne
t 

 | 
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
5

©
 2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. 
A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. 

'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 m
ea

ns
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
, 

a 
lim

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

is
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l L

td
 

(G
ra

nt
T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l).
 R

ef
er

en
ce

s 
to

 'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 a
re

 
to

 th
e 

br
an

d 
un

de
r 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s 

op
er

at
e 

an
d 

re
fe

r 
to

 o
ne

 o
r 

m
or

e 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s,

 a
s 

th
e 

co
nt

ex
t 

re
qu

ire
s.

 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l a

nd
 th

e 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s 

ar
e 

no
t a

 
w

or
ld

w
id

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p.
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 b
y 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s,
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 n
ot

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 o
r 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 
of

 o
ne

 a
no

th
er

. 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l d

oe
s 

no
t p

ro
vi

de
 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 c

lie
nt

s.
 

g
ra

n
t-

th
o

rn
to

n
.c

o
.u

k

109



110

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of last meeting
	7 Internal Audit Exception Recommendations Report and Progress Report up to 31 December 2014
	Appendix 1 - Internal Audit Quarter 3 2014-15 Progress Report

	8 Corporate Anti-Fraud Team (CAFT) Progress Report Q3 October - December 2014
	Appendix 1 CAFT 2014-15 Q3 Report

	9 Annual Audit Letter 2013/2014
	LB Barnet - Annual Audit Letter (1314)

	10 Grants Certification Work Report 2013/2014
	LB Barnet - Certification report (1314)


